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VISION

To become a world-class service provider
in airport operations and management.

MISSION

We develop and manage airports on sound
business principles with due consideration to
the best interest of our stakeholders.

VALUES

Integrity, Teamwork, Accountability
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OUR
STRATEGIC
MAP
Customers

Secure Airports
Safe Airports
Customer Confidence
Brand Strengthening

Internal
Process

Compliance
Corporate Governance
Airport Licensing
Operational Efficiency
Infrastructure Upgrade
Improved
Maintenance

Strategic
Theme:
10% Growth
Strategy

Financial

Financial Sustainability
Capitalisation
Cost Containment
Revenue Growth

Learning &
Growth
Skills Development
Leadership
Organisational
Alignment
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OUR
STRATEGIC
PREMIUM
Our Strategic Premium is geared towards delivering additional value to our stakeholders.

STRATEGIC AREA OF PRIORITY

STRATEGIC PREMIUM 2017

Capital Expenditure

N$1,3 billion

Revenue Growth per annum

10%

Number of Airports Rehabilitated (Airside)

Six

Number of Airports Upgraded (Terminals)

Four

Planned Maintenance

99% of assets

Safety and Security Certified Airports

99% safe and secure

Staff Productivity

90% of plans achieved

Job Creation

350 direct jobs

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK
The objective of Namibia Airports
Company (NAC), as defined in the
Airports Company Act, 1998 (Act
25 of 1998) is “the acquisition,
establishment,
development,
provision, maintenance, management,
control or operation, in accordance
with sound generally accepted
business principles, of any aerodrome,
or any facility or service, including a
relevant activity at any aerodrome
normally related to the functioning of
an aerodrome.”
Section 1 of the Act defines a “relevant
activity” as “provision at a Company
aerodrome of any service or facility for
the purposes of:

(c) the handling of aircraft passengers,
baggage or cargo on the premises
of such aerodrome, including the
transfer of such passengers, baggage
or cargo to and from an aircraft.
The Company owns and manages the
following airports:
- Hosea Kutako International Airport
- Walvis Bay International Airport
- Eros Airport
- Ondangwa Airport
- Katima Mulilo Airport
- Rundu Airport
- Lüderitz Airport
- Keetmanshoop Airport

(a) the arrival, surface movement,
parking or departure of aircraft;
(b) the servicing of aircraft, including
the supply of fuel and lubricants; and
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT
The Namibia Airports Company
(NAC) is committed to ensuring
that its corporate governance
processes conform to international
best practices. The raison d’être
of the Company is to develop
and manage airports, which are
comparable to those of the most
effective airport operators globally.
The Company is duly cognisant
of the need for decisions to be
ethically sound and compliant
with the relevant regulatory
regime. NAC is registered as a
public Company in terms of the
Companies Act (No. 61 of 1973) and
as a public entity or State-owned
Enterprise in terms of the Stateowned Enterprises Governance
Act, 2006 (Act No. 2 of 2006).
The Company is fully compliant
with the principles of good
corporate governance in terms
of the King Report and the Stateowned Enterprises Governance
Act No. 2 of 2006.

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472

Board of Directors
The Company’s control is vested
in the Board of Directors, which
comprises of a non-executive
Chairperson and non-executive
directors appointed by the
Minister of Works and Transport
on behalf of the shareholder, the
Government of the Republic of
Namibia. The Board meets at
least four times a year to consider
operational and policy issues.
During the year under review, the
Board convened 10 scheduled and
10 ad-hoc meetings.
The constitution of the Board
evidences the requisite pool of
expertise. It is vital to state that
the structure and operation of
the Board contains the relevant
checks and balances. Board
members have unfettered access
to Company information via the
Company Secretary, and the
Board may also solicit external
professional
advice
where
necessary.

According to the Company’s
Articles of Association, one third of
the Company’s Board of Directors
shall retire at its Annual General
Meeting. However, the said
directors may be reappointed for
another three-year term.
The responsibility to manage
the Company is delegated to
the Chief Executive Officer. Daily
operations of the Company are
the responsibility of corporate
management,
which includes
the Chief Executive Officer and
Heads of Departments. The Chief
Executive Officer attends Board
and sub-committee meetings
by invitation, together with any
member of the management team
as the Board may invite.
Coordination of Board and Board
sub-committee
activities
and
meetings is done by the Company
Secretary, who apart from assisting
the Board and its committees, also
reports to the

Namibia Airports Company Annual Report 2015/16
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Chief Executive Officer and the
Chairman administratively and
functionally.

Board Committees
The Board has established four
permanent committees, which are
tasked with advising the Board of
Directors on issues of importance
relating to the Company’s sphere
of operation. The Chief Executive
Officer and other members of
corporate management attend
Board committee meetings upon
invitation, while the Company
Secretary provides secretarial
services to all committees.

Audit Committee
The Committee met numerous
times during the period under
review. The mandate of the
Committee is to assist the Board
in discharging its duties in relation
to the safeguarding of assets,
the operation of an adequate
system of internal control and
the preparation of accurate
financial reports and statements
in compliance with all applicable
legal and regulatory requirements
as well as accounting standards.

and indiscriminate compliance
with the Company’s Code of Ethics.
Internal and external auditors
attend
Committee
meetings
upon invitation. External auditors
are appointed at the Annual
General Meeting upon the Board’s
recommendation as duly advised
by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee
This Committee met numerous
times during the period under
review. The primary objective of
the Committee is to assist the
Board in discharging its duties
relating to human capital and
remuneration. In particular, it
recommends
an
appropriate
Remuneration Policy for the
Company as well as appropriate
measures to ensure the Company
has sufficient remuneration levels
to attract, retain and motivate
management and staff.
The Committee also strives to
secure the Company’s status as an
efficient and effective corporate
entity,
in
accordance
with
international best practices.

Tender and Technical
does Committee

The Audit Committee
not perform any management
function or assume management
responsibilities. The governance
mandate requires oversight to
guarantee the implementation

8

The
Committee’s
primary
objective is to support the Board
of Directors in the execution of its
mandate relating to the Company’s
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procurement activities. Three
Tender and Technical Committee
meetings were convened during
the year under review. The
Committee is responsible for
recommending
procurementrelated decisions to the Board,
including tender deliberations,
reviews and amendments to
procurement policy, and advising
the Board on procurement
matters. Submissions to the
committee are made through
the Management Tender and
Technical Committee.

Safety and Security Compliance
Committee
The Committee met twice during
the year under review. The primary
objective of the Committee is to
assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities relating to safety,
security and operational risk
management and compliance.
The Committee oversees and
makes
recommendations
to the Board on the safety
(including health), security, and
environmental and operational
risk profile of the business. The
Committee is also responsible
for making sure that appropriate
policies and procedures are
adopted to ensure timely and
accurate identification, effective
management and reporting of
significant risks.
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Mr. Rodgers R.U. Kauta - Chairperson
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“

“

The successful implementation of the performance
management system is a game changer in the operations
of NAC. Strategically, the organisation is well positioned to
deliver on its mandate, and is poised for success.
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MESSAGE
FROM THE
CHAIRPERSON
For the fiscal year ended 31 March
2016, the Namibia Airports Company
improved its financial results,
recording a profit of N$12.7 million
compared to a N$17 million loss in
prior year.
The reporting period coincided with
the second year of deployment
of our new Strategic Plan 20142017, which is focused on safety
and security compliance, expansion
and
modernisation
of
airport
infrastructure,
maintenance
of
infrastructure and equipment, revenue
growth, and the establishment of a
new organisational structure.
We made considerable progress in all
of these key areas during the reporting
period, as demonstrated by the
opening of a new passenger terminal
building at Ondangwa Airport and
the re-arrangement of the passenger
departure area, and the introduction
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of a new baggage handling system,
which helped to improve the baggage
check-in process at Hosea Kutako
International Airport.
We also completed the acquisition
of new security equipment that was
deployed across all our airports.
NAC successfully completed the
licensing of Hosea Kutako, and Walvis
Bay International Airports in line with
national and international aviation
standards.
In addition, we implemented a new
organisational structure that will
ultimately help us better serve our
customers and stakeholders. Through
this structure, we have established
a new committee dedicated to
safety and security compliance and
implemented a Safety Management
System (SMS) at our airports.

Namibia Airports Company Annual Report 2015/16
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MESSAGE
FROM THE
CHAIRPERSON CONT.
We now have a dedicated Business
Strategy Unit, whose main mandate
is to meet the needs of our strategic
customers and stakeholders.
The new unit allows us to be closer
to our customers and stakeholders,
enabling us to better understand
their challenges and needs in order to
address them as expeditiously as we
can despite our limited resources.
All these achievements would
not have been possible without
the continuous support of our
shareholder, the Government of the
Republic of Namibia, through the
Ministry of Works and Transport,
the dedication and commitment
of our staff at headquarters and at
each of our airports, and the loyalty
of our customers, the airlines and
passengers.
On behalf of the entire board, I wish
to express our gratitude to all our
internal and external stakeholders,
and request their continuous support
while we address the challenges
facing the air transport industry in
Namibia and abroad.

Looking ahead, we will continue to
address our challenges, mainly the
limited capacities at our airports in
terms of passenger terminals and
ageing aeronautical facilities.
Expansion projects are on track and
should be finalised in the next fiscal
year, in particular the construction of a
passenger terminal building at Walvis
Bay International Airport.
We anticipate completion of the
rehabilitation of the Ondangwa Airport
Runway, construction of a Fire Station
at Eros Airport, and other projects
supported by the Government. These
projects will help us realise our growth
strategy.
Finally, we will continue implementing
safety and security compliance
activities with the licensing of
Ondangwa and Eros airports.

MR. RODGERS R.U. KAUTA
Chairperson
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The successful
implementation of the
performance management
system is a game changer
in the operations of
NAC. Strategically, the
organisation is well
positioned to deliver on its
mandate, and is poised for
success.
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T. S. El kallawi - Chief Executive Officer
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“

I wish to express my profound gratitude to the NAC Board of
Directors, management team, personnel and stakeholders
for their continuous support and commitment that made
our achievements in the 2015/2016
financial year possible.
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MESSAGE
FROM THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
The Namibia Airports Company (NAC)
increased its total revenue by 7% to
N$223 million during the fiscal year
ended 31 March 2016, meeting one
of the core objectives of the Strategic
Plan 2014-2017, which is revenue
growth.
Both aeronautical revenue and nonaeronautical revenue grew by the
same margin during the 2014/2015
and 2015/2016 financial years, but
worryingly the Company continues
to depend heavily on aeronautical
revenue, which constitutes 80% of
total income.
This excessive reliance on aeronautical
activities should, however, be reduced
going forward, as we continue
with infrastructure upgrade and
rehabilitation projects at most of our
airports across the country.

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472

During the year under review, we
recorded overall improved capacity at
our airports following the completion
of key infrastructure projects at
Ondangwa Airport and Hosea Kutako
International Airport (HKIA).
At Ondangwa, the new passenger
terminal building can now handle up
to 750,000 passengers per annum.
The airport now provides amenities
that modern travelers have come
to expect at an airport, including
restaurants, shops, as well as spacious
departure and arrival lounges.
At HKIA, a re-arrangement of the
passenger departure area, and
the introduction of a new baggage
handling system are expected to
improve the overall efficiency of
airport operations while we continue

Namibia Airports Company Annual Report 2015/16
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MESSAGE
FROM THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER CONT.
to work together with our shareholder,
the Government of the Republic of
Namibia, towards finalisation of the
much needed expansion project.
The new security equipment at our
airports is also expected to enlarge
our revenue base, as we introduce an
airport security charge to offset the
associated costs.
NAC, with the support of the
Government, will continue to play
its expected role as envisaged under
the National Development Goals and
Vision 2030, through the provision
of modern infrastructure capable
of meeting current and anticipated
demands of national and international
travelers.
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I wish to express my profound
gratitude to the NAC Board of
Directors,
management
team,
personnel and stakeholders for their
continuous support and commitment
that made our achievements in the
2015/2016 financial year possible.

T. S. EL KALLAWI
Chief Executive Officer
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The Namibia Airports
Company (NAC) increased
its total revenue by 7% to
N$223 million during the
fiscal year ended
31 March 2016, meeting
one of the core objectives
of the Strategic Plan
2014-2017, which is
revenue growth.
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Board of

DIRECTORS

RODGERS R.U. KAUTA

Chairperson

QUALIFICATIONS
Bachelors in Sociology and Political Science from the University of Namibia
as well as a Bachelor of Law (LLB) from Rhodes University, South Africa.
EXPERIENCE
Rodgers is a highly accomplished legal practitioner with more than
10 years of commercial law experience, specifically in litigation and
regulation. He has knowledge of credit facilities, credit agreements,
international agreements and construction agreements. Rodgers was a
founding member and Director of the Dr Weder, Kauta and Kamuhanga
Incorporated law firm until 2010 when he left to pursue other business
interests.

BEVERLEY GAWANAS-VUGS

Deputy Chairperson

QUALIFICATIONS
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the Namibia Business School at
the University of Namibia (UNAM), and a Bachelors in Accounting also from UNAM.
Beverly completed her Accounting Articles at PWC.
EXPERIENCE
Beverly currently serves as the Financial Manager at the Namibia Housing
Enterprise (NHE). She previously worked at TransNamib doing payroll, industrial
relations, and human resources, amongst others and then moved to Standard
Bank Namibia as Accounts Reconciliation and Processing Officer for two years.
Thereafter, she worked at PWC as an Accountant and Auditor, before joining
Rennies Travel as Financial Manager in 2005.

18
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RUDOLPH R. RITTMANN

Director

QUALIFICATIONS
Master’s in Engineering, specialising in Transportation from the University of Cape
Town, a Baccalaureus Technologiae Degree: Civil Engineering, a National Diploma
Civil Engineering (Cum Laude) and a Certificate in Road Management from The
International Road Federation & University of Birmingham. He also attended the
Roads Authority Leadership Development Program offered by the University of
Stellenbosch.
EXPERIENCE
Rudolph is a Regional Engineer Manager at Roads Authority responsible for
Infrastructure System Development, Road Infrastructure Management, Pavement
and Traffic Engineering and Evaluation, Road Infrastructure Financing, Project
Management, Contract Management, Pavement Engineering, Preservation
Management. Before that, he was an Acting Regional Engineer, managing budgets
of up to N$300 million and various routine and periodic maintenance contracts.

LESENDA G. MOHAMED

Director

QUALIFICATIONS
B. Com from the University of Namibia (UNAM), Honours Degree from the
University of Cape Town (UCT), M. Comm (Economics) from Wits University and
an MBA from GIBS/University of Pretoria.
EXPERIENCE
Lesenda is the General Manager: Insurance at NAMFISA. In 2010, she was
attached to the Federal Trade Commission of the United States of America
for three months enhancing her regulatory and supervisory experience and
skills. Before joining NAMFISA, Lesenda was with the Competition Authority
of South Africa, where she was Section Head in the Mergers and Acquisitions
Division before becoming the Head of International Relations in the Office of the
Commissioner.

IPUPA KASHEETA

Director

QUALIFICATIONS
Master’s in Business Leadership (University of South Africa), Bachelor of Business
Administration: Human Resource Management (University of Namibia), Advanced
Diploma in Central Banking (Institute of Bankers in SA), Higher Education Diploma
(UNAM), and Certificate in Organisation Development (UNISA). She further
underwent professional training in Port management in: France (IMO), Ireland
(UNCTAD) and Israel (Galilee College).
EXPERIENCE
Ipupa is a Port Operations Manager, leading the Bulk & Break-bulk Terminal at
the Namibia Ports Authority in Walvis Bay, making her the first woman in this
role. She gained over ten years’ experience in the Human Resources field working
for the Bank of Namibia, Roads Authority and Namibian Ports Authority, before
moving into port operations.

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472

Namibia Airports Company Annual Report 2015/16

19

MANAGEMENT

LOT HAIFIDI

Legal Advisor

VERENGAI RUSWA

Strategic Executive: Finance & Admin

TOSKA SEM

Strategic Executive: Business Strategy

ANGELA SIBALATANI

Manager: Risk & Compliance

TAMER S. EL-KALLAWI

Chief Executive Officer
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COURAGE SILOMBELA

Strategic Executive: Engineering, IT & Special Projects

THE LATE: ANTON THEART

Strategic Executive: Strategic Business Unit 1

LEONARD SHIPUATA

Strategic Executive: Strategic Business Unit 2

JOSEPHINE SOROSES

Acting Strategic Executive: Human Resources

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472
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FINANCIAL
PERSPECTIVE
Revenue

Revenue for the Company increased
by 7% to N$222,974,319 compared
to the previous year, largely due to
a combination of approved tariff
increases and a marginal increase in
passenger traffic at our major airports.
Aeronautical
revenue
contributed
N$171,220,189
(2015: N$157,243,193) to total
revenue, while non-aeronautical
revenue’s contribution declined to
N$51,754,130 (2015: N$51,898,117)

Aeronautical Revenue

Aeronautical revenue marginally
increased to 77% of total revenue
compared to 75% in prior year.
This was mainly due to increased
passenger volumes at Hosea Kutako
International Airport and Eros Airport,
which led to an increase in passenger
fees, landing fees and after hours
operating fees.

Non-Aeronautical Revenue

Non-aeronautical revenue declined
by N$143,983 in the 2015/2016

22

financial year, to make up 23% of
NAC’s total revenue base, compared
to a contribution of 25% in the previous
year.

profitability represented by EBITDA
decreased by 165% from N$13.5
million in prior year to N$8.7 million in
the year ended March 2016.

This was largely due to the project
that was undertaken to refurbish and
rehabilitate the terminal building at
Walvis Bay International Airport.

The decrease was in spite of an
increase in revenue and the positive
result from our revenue growth
management initiatives.

Return on Assets

Increased expenditure on staff costs,
and repairs and maintenance, brought
about by compliance requirements
were the two main contributors to the
increase in operating expenses.

The Company’s return on assets
employed increased to 0.4% compared
to a negative return of -0.6% in prior
year. While this can be construed as
a favourable movement, the increase
was driven by an income tax credit
of N$80 million reported by the
Company.
The consistently low return on assets
is a result of losses incurred at all
other airports except Hosea Kutako
International Airport.

Earnings
Before
Interest,
Depreciation,
Taxation
and
Ammortisation (EBIDTA)

Capital Expenditure

In order to ensure continued financial
sustainability, the Company undertook
several major capital projects and
direct asset purchases in line with our
strategic objectives.
Of the N$667 million budgeted for
capital projects during the year, only
N$465 million was actually spent, as
some projects were behind schedule.

Due to an increase in commitment
to compliance activities, operating

Namibia Airports Company Annual Report 2015/16

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472

Included in the capital expenditure
projects during the financial year
is N$105 million (2015: N$213
million) incurred in respect of projects
undertaken by the Ministry of Works
and Transport on behalf of NAC.

Working Capital

Net working capital declined by
N$232 million, because of significant
challenges experienced in collecting
revenue from main customers such as
Air Namibia, and balances in respect of
Government leases.

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472

The reduced collections contributed
to a significantly lower level of cash
and cash equivalents, compared to the
year ended 31 March 2015.
However, the Company’s trade and
other payables increased due to
various factors, chief of which was the
increase in compliance expenditure
incurred during the year.
While the net working capital position
remains favourable due to the
significantly lower level of current

liabilities relative to current assets,
there are indications that if remedial
action is not taken to improve
collections, this positive situation may
be eroded in the short to mediumterm.
Strategies being put in place to restore
a robust cash flow and working capital
position include the IATA Financing
Agreement, as well as improving
controls over the supply chain.

Namibia Airports Company Annual Report 2015/16
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OUR
AIRPORTS
Katima Mulilo
Ondangwa

Rundu

Hosea Kutako

Eros
Walvis Bay

Lüderitz
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HOSEA KUTAKO
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
OPERATIONS
Airport Planning

The number of airlines operating
out of Hosea Kutako International
Airport (HKIA) is set to increase in the
near future as Africa is expected to
experience a two-fold growth in air
traffic passengers by 2030.
It is also projected that around six
billion passengers worldwide will
make use of air transport annually
come 2030, thus Namibia as a SADC
logistics Hub, is expected to facilitate
more of these passengers at our
airports.
The use of fuel-efficient aircrafts as
well as trade liberalisation worldwide
will further drive growth in passenger
and aircraft traffic across the African
continent.
This projected growth is, however,
likely to create problems for airport
operators like NAC, as there are
concerns
about
whether
the
Company’s ageing infrastructure will
be able to meet increased demand.
Airport planning has, thus become
a key activity of our operations in
order to keep airport infrastructure
development at the same pace as that
of airlines and passenger growth.
This is done through coordinated
efforts, which comprise of, but not
limited to, regulation, land use/
surface access, route development,
Government, local communities,
research and development (R&D) as

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472

well as airlines with due consideration
to the environment in which we
operate.
All of these are stipulated in our
Airport Operations Manual.
The number of passengers flying in
and out of Hosea Kutako International
Airport has outgrown the airport’s
capacity, thus a need exists for the
development of a state-of-the-art
facility to cater for more airlines and
to ensure a smooth facilitation of
passengers.

Customer Service

At HKIA, customer service is our
number one priority. From road,
railway to runway, we focus on
conveying the best customer service
experience.
A Customer Perception Survey done for
the year ended 31 March 2015 rated
our facilities, personnel and operators’
services above average, an indicator
that HKIA’s ageing infrastructure is
being put to remarkable use. This
means that we are doing more with
less, thus optimising the limited
available resources at our disposal.

Airport Slot Management

NAC took note of the fact that
movements by airlines have outgrown
the apron capacity at HKIA, and as a
result, the Company implemented a
parking system on a first-come firstserved basis.

Although this system worked during
the year under review, we anticipate
challenges in the near future as an
increasing number of international
airlines operating wide-bodied aircraft
have indicated their willingness to
operate flights to Namibia.

Safety Risk Management

HKIA went through the aerodrome
licencing process, which resulted in
the renewal of the Aerodrome Licence
for another year. The Company is
taking all steps necessary to address
all reported safety concerns to ensure
renewal of the licence in future
periods.

Bird and Wildlife Programme

A consultant, Dr ML Hauptfleisch, was
engaged to assist with drafting a Bird
and Wildlife Programme report, which
was completed during the financial
year under review. This report is
currently in the review process and
will be finalised in the coming financial
year.

Security Risk Management

During the year, NAC obtained approval
for and subsequently implemented an
Airport Security Programme (ASP).
An ASP is a compliance document
outlining Aviation Security (AVSEC)
procedures, which all stakeholders
must carry out at the airport in order to
comply with the Namibia Civil Aviation
Authority Security Programme.
Eight Aviation Security officials
attended and completed an ICAO
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Basic AVSEC training. Three AVSEC officials attained screeners’ certification and all AVSEC officials received training in
operating scanners, while three officials attended a National Instructor’s course.

Airport Statistics

Total passenger traffic at HKIA is expected to grow significantly in the next two financial years with the introduction of new
airlines such as Air Link, Ethiopian Airways, Qatar Airways and KLM.

Airport Capacity

Below is a table showing the capacity of Hosea Kutako International Airport:
HOSEA KUTAKO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

2015/16

2014/15

Passenger Throughput

753,440

796,987

Total Aircraft Movement

14,153

14,826

800,000

800,000

993

680

Annual Passenger Handling Capacity
Public Parking Bays

Airport Throughput Statistics
Passenger traffic
Overall passenger traffic movement at all NAC airports recorded a slight negative growth rate of -1.9% during the 2015/16
financial year compared to prior year. HKIA, in particular, experienced a reduction of -5.5% in the year under review
compared to the 2014/2015 financial year.
TOTAL

INTERNATIONAL

REGIONAL

DOMESTIC

Airport

2015/16

2014/15 % CHANGE

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

HKIA

753,440

796,987

246,226

252,565

467,296

495,840

39,918

48,582

(5.5)

Aircraft traffic
TOTAL
Airport
HKIA

2015/16
14,153

INTERNATIONAL

2014/15 % CHANGE
14,826

(4.5)

REGIONAL

DOMESTIC

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

2,587

2,679

7,320

7,144

4,246

5,003

Retail, Property and Concession

The retail mix at HKIA is a major part of our operations. It includes a VAT Refund Kiosk and Duty Free Shop, Curio shops and
various other speciality kiosks offering a wide range of services and products.
Furthermore, HKIA properties are utilised to cater for turnaround facilities such as car rentals, aircraft maintenance
hangars, a cargo warehouse and an inflight kitchen.
At NAC, we understand passengers’ and other airport users’ needs, and as such we combine knowledge of the local
market with our global expertise to deliver an unrivalled airport shopping experience, driven by decades of experience.
Working closely with our airport stakeholders, we strive for airport retail solutions tailored to the needs of our customers.
To that end, we offer a comprehensive range of inflight operational solutions for airlines operating from HKIA.
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It is for this reason that HKIA has
experienced a steady growth in rental
revenue in recent years, which was
maintained in the year under review.

Parking

Motor vehicle parking at HKIA is
divided into three components - public
parking, long-term parking and staff
parking - managed through a pay
park system. Due to an increase in the
number of parking bays at HKIA,
parking revenue increased by 21.4% to
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a record N$7.9 million in the year to 31
March 2016

Car Rental and Shuttle

Well-known car rental service
providers operate from HKIA facilities
providing convenient service to
travellers who arrive and depart from
the airport. Several shuttle operators
offer a convenient shuttle service from
the terminal building to the Windhoek
city centre should the passenger opt
not to hire a car.

Advertising

Due to a protracted legal case with our
Advertising concession, NAC did not
record any advertising income during
the period under review.

Ground Handling Fees

Revenue from ground handling fees
earned from the two ground handling
licence holders, Air Namibia and
Menzies Aviation, increased by 12.2%
to N$4 million in the period under
review.
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EROS, WALVIS BAY
INTERNATIONAL, ONDANGWA
AND REGIONAL AIRPORTS
OPERATIONS
As part of Namibia Airports
Company’s turnaround strategy, the
Strategic Business Unit 2 (SBU 2) now
oversees operations at Eros, Walvis
Bay International, Ondangwa and the
regional airports of Rundu, Katima
Mulilo, Lüderitz and Keetmanshoop.
Below are the operational highlights of
the airports managed by the business
unit during the period under review:
Airport Planning
In order to keep up with the increasing
demands of domestic air travellers,
NAC continued with its vigorous
infrastructure development exercise,
which, once completed, will result
in the upgrade of all our airports to
international standards. A further
result of this development process
is the positioning of NAC airports as
strategic logistic hubs in line with
Namibia’s developmental goals as
outlined in the Harambee Prosperity
Plan and the National Development
Plans.
NAC’s vision is to continue mutually
beneficial partnerships with operators
at our airports to increase passenger
and
traffic
movements
while
ensuring utmost safety for all airport
users. In this regard, the following
key infrastructure projects were
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•

undertaken at the various airports
managed by NAC’s SBU 2:
•

•

•

Completion and commissioning
of a new terminal building at
Ondangwa in July 2015. The
terminal was redeveloped into
a modern building capable of
meeting international standards.
Rehabilitation of the Ondangwa
Airport runway to Code 4C to
accommodate
wide-bodied
aircraft such as the Airbus A319.
This phase of the project was
concluded in November 2016,
subsequent to the period under
review.
• Construction of a new
terminal building at Walvis
Bay International Airport with
a capacity to accommodate
200 passenger movements
per hour. This project was
completed in July 2016,
subsequent to year end.
Rehabilitation of the runway at
Walvis Bay International Airport
with the assistance of the Ministry
of Works and Transport to Code
4F to enable it to accommodate
wide-bodied aircraft such as the
Airbus A380. This project was
completed in June 2015.
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•

•

Construction of a new fire
station at Eros Airport to
enhance the safety and firefighting capabilities at the
airport. NAC completed and
commissioned this project in
July 2016, subsequent to the
financial year under review.
Rehabilitation by the Ministry
of Works and Transport of the
runway, taxiway and apron at
Katima Mulilo Airport. The project
was still ongoing at the end of the
financial year.
Erection of a polymer perimeter
fencing at Walvis Bay International
and Lüderitz airports designed to
withstand the coastal weather
conditions. The project was also
still ongoing at the end of the
financial year.

Customer Service
Customer service continues to be an
important aspect of our business. In
light of this, the Company undertook
dedicated tailor-made customer care
training for frontline officers operating
at all our airports during the period
under review with the participation of
key stakeholders to enhance service
delivery and ensure satisfaction to our
valued airport users.
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Airport Slot Management
The current traffic movements at Eros, Walvis Bay International, Ondangwa and the regional airports do not warrant a slot
management operation.
Fire & Rescue
In order to ensure continuous adequate shift strength, 52 people underwent training to become Airport Rescue and Fire
Fighting (ARFF) officers during the review period. The Company has since deployed some of the new ARFF officers to the
respective fire stations at NAC airports.
Safety Risk Management
Airport safety continues to be a key business priority for NAC. In the period under review, safety officers received training
on the Safety Management System (SMS) to enable them to apply the fundamentals of hazard identification and analysis
as well as safety risk management as required under the new Annex 19 of the Chicago Convention.
SMS manuals were developed as part of the NAC SMS implementation plan spearheaded by the Risk and Compliance
team and incorporated in the Aerodrome Operations Manuals of Eros, Walvis Bay International and Ondangwa airports.
Security Risk Management
Security remains one of the fundamental principles of our business to prevent unlawful interference with civil aviation
activities at our airports. For the period under review, Eros, Walvis Bay International and Ondangwa airports were equipped
with sophisticated explosives trace detectors (ETD). Operators of the security equipment received training to detect and
trace extremely small explosive materials on passengers and in hand luggage at all NAC airports.
Airport Statistics
Below is a summary of the capacities of Eros, Walvis Bay International, Ondangwa, Rundu, Katima Mulilo, Lüderitz and
Keetmanshoop airports:
Eros Airport

2015/16

2014/15

Passenger Throughput

70,427

82,365

Total Aircraft Movements

17,807

23,565

161,820

161,820

108

108

Walvis Bay International

2015/16

2014/15

Passenger Throughput

116,428

83,758

4,834

3,782

657,000

657,000

140

140

2015/16

2014/15

42,692

42,981

2,448

2,644

116,064

116,064

97

97

Annual Passenger Handling Capacity
Public Parking Bays

Total Aircraft Movements
Annual Passenger Handling Capacity
Public Parking Bays
Ondangwa Airport
Passenger Throughput
Total Aircraft Movements
Annual Passenger Handling Capacity
Public Parking Bays
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Rundu Airport

2015/16

2014/15

Passenger Throughput

9,809

6,239

Total Aircraft Movements

1,189

1,326

Annual Passenger Handling Capacity

80,352

80,352

Public Parking Bays

18

18

Katima Mulilo Airport

2015/16

2014/15

Passenger Throughput

12,533

12,084

Total Aircraft Movements

1,375

1,147

Annual Passenger Handling Capacity

80,352

80,352

Public Parking Bays

32

32

Lüderitz Airport

2015/16

2014/15

Passenger Throughput

5,022

5,104

Total Aircraft Movements

1,117

1,366

Annual Passenger Handling Capacity

80,352

80,352

Public Parking Bays

15

15

Keetmanshoop Airport

2015/16

2014/15

Passenger Throughput

2,504

2,162

Total Aircraft Movements

1,025

919

Annual Passenger Handling Capacity

80,352

80,352

Public Parking Bays

31
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Passenger Movements
Walvis Bay, Katima Mulilo, Rundu and Keetmanshoop airports recorded positive growth in passenger movements, while
Eros, Ondangwa and Lüderitz recorded a reduction in passenger movements; resulting in a 10.1% overall increase in
passenger volumes at all the airports managed by SBU 2.
The 14.5% reduction in passenger traffic at Eros Airport and the 0.7% drop in passenger numbers at Ondangwa Airport
were largely due to the temporary closure of the Ondangwa runway between December 2015 and January 2016 for
rehabilitation works to improve the level of compliance and to meet capacity requirements.
Walvis Bay International Airport recorded a 39% surge in passenger volumes, while Rundu, Katima Mulilo and
Keetmanshoop airports recorded increases of 42.5%, 3.7% and 15.8%, respectively. Lüderitz Airport passenger volumes
decreased marginally by 1.6% during the period under review compared to the previous financial year.
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TOTAL

INTERNATIONAL

REGIONAL

DOMESTIC

2015/16

2014/15

% CHANGE

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

70,427

82,365

(14.5)

662

1,282

2,318

2,308

67,447

78,775

116,428

83,758

39.0

492

587

97,692

60,935

18,244

22,236

ONDANGWA

42,692

42,981

(0.7)

88

149

88

126

42,516

42,706

KATIMA MULILO

12,533

12,084

3.7

98

180

194

126

12,241

11,778

RUNDU

8,909

6,239

42.8

27

114

66

134

8,816

5,991

KEETMANSHOOP

2,504

2,162

15.8

-

-

419

299

2,085

1,863

LÜDERITZ

5,022

5,104

(1.6)

-

-

82

72

4,940

5,032

258,515

234,693

10.2

1,367

2,312

100,859

64,000

156,289

168,381

AIRPORT
EROS
WALVIS BAY
INTERNATIONAL

TOTAL
PASSENGERS

Air Traffic Movements
While there was an overall increase in passenger movements at the seven airports, aircraft movements, on the other
hand, reduced significantly during the period under review. Eros Airport recorded the biggest decline at 24.4% followed
by 18.2% and 10.3% recorded at Lüderitz and Rundu airports, respectively. Ondangwa also recoded a 7.4% reduction in
aircraft movements in the period under review compared to prior year.
It is important to note that Eros Airport is the busiest of all NAC airports in terms of aircraft movements; therefore, the
decline in aircraft movement at the airport negatively affected overall aircraft movements.
Marked increases in aircraft movements of 27.8% and 11.5% were noted at Walvis Bay and Keetmanshoop airports,
respectively.
NAC forecasts an increase in traffic at Eros, Walvis Bay and Ondangwa airports in the 2016/17 financial year due to a
decision by Air Namibia to increase the frequency of domestic flights.
TOTAL

INTERNATIONAL

REGIONAL

DOMESTIC

2015/16

2014/15

% CHANGE

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

2014/15

17,807

23,565

(24.4)

215

351

1,656

1,814

15,936

21,400

WALVISBAY

4,834

3,782

27.8

52

64

3,051

1,595

1,731

2,123

ONDANGWA

2,448

2,644

(7.4)

103

190

59

123

2,286

2,331

KATIMA MULILO

1,375

1,147

19.9

47

53

103

*84

1,225

1,010

RUNDU

1,189

1,326

(10.3)

18

58

85

129

1,086

1,139

KEETMANSHOOP

1,025

919

11.5

-

-

259

218

766

701

LÜDERITZ

1,117

1,366

(18.2)

-

-

51

91

1,066

1,275

29,795

34,749

435

716

5,264

4,054

24,096

29,979

AIRPORT
EROS

TOTAL
MOVEMENTS

Airport Operations
During the review period, NAC successfully applied for an aerodrome license for Walvis Bay International Airport in line with
national and international regulations and standards. The aerodrome licence is valid for a period of 12 months. Aerodrome
licences for Ondangwa and Eros airports will be renewed in the 2016/17 financial year.
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Retail, Properties and Concession
The airport revenue model is becoming increasingly diversified and sophisticated. Similar to world airports, NAC airports
have also moved beyond being mere infrastructure providers for aeronautical activities to become varied and far-reaching
enterprises.
Increased efforts were made to grow revenue from non-aeronautical sources at the various airports. NAC has dedicated
commercial personnel whose responsibility is to identify opportunities to grow commercial revenues at Eros, Walvis Bay,
Ondangwa and the regional airports of Katima Mulilo, Rundu, Keetmanshoop and Lüderitz.
Below are some of the key sources of commercial and/or non-aeronautical revenue:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Parking management system
Car rentals
Concessions & retail
Advertising
Ground handling
Fuel throughput

Parking Management System
A new automated parking management system was established at Ondangwa Airport during the review period, while
a manual system was installed at Walvis Bay International Airport as an interim measure pending the completion and
operation of a new terminal building.
Car Rental
A new Car Rental license operation was launched at Ondangwa Airport, which included the following key brands:
1. Avis
2. Rent A Car
3. Bidvest Namibia Car Rental
4. Europcar
5. Profile Car Hire; and
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ENGINEERING,
IT AND PROJECTS
Overview

In order to achieve its mission to
develop and maintain airports
and airports infrastructure, the
Namibia Airports Company set up an
Engineering, IT and Projects Business
Unit, which is responsible for planning,
designing, construction, supervision,
maintenance and technical forecasting
of all airport infrastructure run by the
Company.
These activities are guided and
directed
by
the
International
Civil Aviation Organisation (ICAO)
regulations, as well as Namibian Civil
Aviation Regulations (NAMCARs) Part
139.
The business unit is further
responsible for the Company’s IT
infrastructure and fleet management.

Key Highlights and Achievements

• The Company carried out a
vigorous training exercise for all its
engineers in light of the shortage
of skilled aviation engineers in the
country.
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• The
Company
successfully
completed construction of the
Ondangwa
terminal
building
and made significant progress
regarding construction of the
Walvis Bay terminal building.
• Construction of the new Eros
fire station and rehabilitation of
the Ondangwa runway are at an
advanced stage. Completion is
scheduled during the year ending
31 March 2017.
• In line with NAMCARs and ICAO
regulations,
NAC
developed
Standard Operating Procedures
and Maintenance Manuals for
Hosea Kutako International, Walvis
Bay International, Ondangwa and
Eros airports, respectively.
• The Company made significant
progress in its project to upgrade
all its IT hardware, and install
WIFI at Hosea Kutako, Walvis
Bay, Ondangwa and Eros airports,
which should result in improved IT
communications and the launch of
an NAC revamped website.
• State-of-the-art security scanners,
sniffers and metal detectors were
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installed at all the airports across
the country to improve the safety
and security of all passengers and
users of the Company’s airports.

Stakeholder Relationship
Management

The Company recognises that
without its stakeholders, services
to passengers – the lifeblood of any
airport – will not be possible. It is
therefore vital that mutually beneficial
relationships with stakeholders,
such as the Namibia Civil Aviation
Authority, Namibian Police, Ministry
of Home Affairs and Immigration and
the Ministry of Works and Transport
are developed, strengthened and
continually managed.
NAC has now reached a point where
it has structured ways of engaging
with stakeholders, both formally and
informally. The Company continuously
involves its stakeholders in the
development and maintenance of
infrastructure, and this engagement
is expected to improve in the years to
come.
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Projects run from 2014 – 2017
In the period under review, the Company spent N$335
million (2014/15: N$89 million) on capital projects from
its cash reserves. In addition, the Ministry of Works and
Transport carried projects worth N$105 million (2014/15:
N$213 million).
Planning started for the refurbishment of runways and
taxiways at Eros, and HKIA airports. Depending on the
availability of funds, these projects are expected to
commence during the 2017/2018 financial year.
Work on the rehabilitation of the runway, taxiways and
apron at Ondangwa Airport at an estimated cost of N$400
million, started during December 2015.
Rehabilitation of the runway, taxiways and apron at the
Walvis Bay International Airport, a project handled by the
Ministry of Works and Transport, was completed during the
year, at a cost of N$270 million.
The table below shows key projects completed during the
year as well as those that were ongoing at year end:

Project Name

Status

Walvis Bay Airport
Terminal Building

Expected to be completed
during the 2016/2017
financial year.

Polymer Fence Lüderitz
Airport

The main portion was
completed, but the east
landing area is 51% complete

Walvis Bay Runway &
Apron Assessment

Runway completed by
the Ministry of Works and
Transport

Scada for Electrical
System

10% complete at the end of
the 2015/16 financial year

New Eros Airport Fire
Station

Expected to be completed
during the 2016/17 financial
year

Genset Room

Expected to be completed
during the 2016/17 financial
year

New Terminal Building at
Ondangwa Airport

Completed

Ondangwa Airport –
Runway Rehabilitation
and Upgrade: Phase 0

Completed
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Ondangwa Airport –
Runway Rehabilitation
and Upgrade: Phase 1

Completed

Ondangwa Airport –
Runway Rehabilitation
and Upgrade: Phase 2

To commence in the
2016/17 financial year

Hosea Kutako
International Airport
Apron surface markings

Completed

Hosea Kutako
International Airport:
Primary Water
Reticulation System

Completed

Renovations at Hosea
Kutako International
Airport (Operations Room
and Fire Station)

Ongoing, to be completed in
the next financial year

Upgrading of network
Completed
infrastructure and VPN
connections at all airports
Upgrading of the current
NAC network equipment
at Eros Airport for ERP

Completed

Supply and installation
of New IT Infrastructure
solution for HQ and DR
– Storage virtualisation,
backup & disaster
recovery plan

Completed

Supply & installation
of wireless hotspots at
HKIA, Eros, Walvis Bay &
Ondangwa

70% complete at year end

Airport Scanners

Purchased, delivered,
installed and commissioned

Runway sweeper

Purchased and delivered

Friction tester sweeper

Purchased and delivered

Airport Planning

Due to the ever-growing air traffic and ever-improving
ICAO regulations, planning for NAC’s airports has become
the foundation of the Company’s strategy. During the year
under review, the Company started the process to procure
and train technical staff on a master planning software
called CAST, which is aimed at reducing the amount of
resources spent on outsourcing the master planning, as
well as improving our in-house capacity.
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Information Technology

NAC is an Information Communications Technology (ICT)
dependant business. The Information Technology (IT)
function provides an integral platform for the business to
achieve its strategic intent and deliverables.
The IT department is therefore responsible for the provision
of ICT strategic and operational support in line with the
Company’s business strategies and imperatives.
The success factors over the reporting period related to
improved systems availability, with emphasis on priority
systems. The average performance of systems was in
excess of 95 percent for critical systems and 98 percent for
priority systems.
The performance of IT Finance remained consistent in line
with forecast. Savings of between 2 percent and 5 percent
were achieved over the year, with increased performance
levels. Focus was on efficacy and efficiency of all financial
resources.
The primary data centre at Eros Airport provided benefits
of improved on-time availability, disaster recovery and
backup, which include the seamless backup of other
airports’ systems.
In the coming year, the IT function will focus on developing
the self-service strategy in conjunction with business
partners and the airline community. This will ensure
alignment between the airlines’ self-service strategy and
infrastructure provision for the Company’s airports.
The demand for IT skills in the market continues to be a
major challenge in the selection and hiring of high-calibre
staff. Thus, the training and development of IT staff to
keep abreast with the demands of the Company and the
ever-changing IT environment is imperative for continued
success. In this regard, an IT Talent Committee should be
established to focus on staff attraction, development and
retention.

Security Technology

Latest technology equipment for X-ray screening, mobile
blast containers and explosive trace detection were
installed and commissioned at HKIA, Eros, Ondangwa and
Walvis Bay airports. The regional airports only received the
X-ray scanners and trace detectors.
The new X-ray units improved carry-on luggage screening
by providing clear, high-definition images that improve
security officers’ ability to detect potential threat items.
The X-ray systems are built to be upgradeable and
programmable to integrate the latest Liquids, Aerosols
and Gels (LAGs) software. As new threats emerge and
capabilities improve, enhancements to the equipment at
airports will generally require only a software upgrade.
The system provides a quick and reliable evaluation
process, and automated detection flags of potential threat
items on screen.
On-the-job training keeps security officers’ skills up to date
through the daily use of a Threat Image Projection (TIP)
software programme, which routinely tests their abilities
to detect weapons and explosives by X-ray.

Screener Certification

Under ICAO regulations, contracting states are obliged to
conduct a National Screener Certification programme. This
applies to all persons who are involved in the application of
any process in relation to aviation security that is intended
to identify and detect weapons, explosives or other
dangerous devices, articles and substances that may be
used to commit an act of unlawful interference with civil
aviation.
This programme addresses the recruitment, selection
criteria, screener tasks, screener supervision and screener
management of security personnel. The regulator, the
Namibia Civil Aviation Authority, is well equipped and
resourced to deliver the required training and certification.

To establish user satisfaction levels, real-time feedback will
soon be captured to measure experiences with the IT service
desk. Where performance ratings are unsatisfactory, an
action plan will be implemented to address problem areas.
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RISK AND
COMPLIANCE
Namibia Civil Aviation Regulations
require Namibia Airports Company
(NAC) to establish a quality assurance
system containing an aviation
safety programme for the control,
supervision of the operation, and
maintenance of the aerodrome and its
facilities.
The legal framework of the Airports
Company Act of 1998, requires NAC to
carry out all its activities in line with the
national and international standards
and recommended practices, hence,
the organisation opted to develop,
implement and maintain a safety
management system (SMS) required
for contracting States to the Chicago
Convention, which is more robust
and comprehensive than a quality
assurance system.
A gap analysis identified deficiencies
within the Company’s operations
as a foundation to developing an
SMS. This was complemented
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by the development of an SMS
implementation plan, which describes
how the organisation intends to fill
the gaps identified through the SMS
gap analysis.
This plan is aimed at meeting the
objectives and expectations of the
SMS framework and outlines the
activities to be undertaken to meet the
overall objectives and expectations of
the SMS framework while supporting
effective and efficient delivery of
services.
NAC has made great strides in the
creation and maintenance of an
effective, self-sustaining culture for
the management of safety at the
organisational level. The organisation’s
commitment to aviation safety can be
seen in the safety policy statement
endorsed by the Chief Executive
Officer, as Accountable Manager and
Compliance Officer and approved by
the Board of Directors.
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Moreover, the organisation has
appointed key safety personnel
to spearhead the development,
implementation and maintenance
of the SMS. A safety and security
compliance
committee
was
established to develop policies and
manage resources aimed at achieving
and maintaining aviation safety and
security compliance.
Furthermore, the coordination and
monitoring of activities is overseen
by the Safety and Security Executive
Committee, while the implementation
of safety and security activities is the
repsonisibility of the Safety Action
Group operating at the airports.
Risk and compliance personnel
responsible for the development and
maintenance of a quality assurance
system have been vetted by the
Namibia Civil Aviation Authority as
persons responsible for the
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development and implementation of a
quality assurance system.
Risk and compliance assurance
functions are pivotal to the operations
of the organisation, as they steer the
aviation operations in accordance
with the provisions of NAMCARs part
139 and civil aviation standards and
recommended practices.
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This advisory role in collaboration with
improved infrastructure and processes
in which the airport’s operations are
undertaken has led to the certification
of Walvis Bay and Hosea Kutako
International Airports as required by
Namibia Civil Aviation Regulations.

Moreover,
the
strategies
and
processes aimed at achieving the
objectives of a safety management
system are integrated progressively
throughout the company at corporate
level and within the airports and have
become an integral part of the way of
doing business.
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HUMAN
RESOURCES
The success of any organisation
depends to a greater extent on the
performance of its employees.
The skills level of an organisation’s
workforce or its intelligence capital is
the true competitive advantage that
the organisation has, which cannot
easily be imitated by its competitors.
As at 31 March 2016, the Namibia
Airports Company had a total of
356 staff members across all its
workstations, of which 346 held

permanent employment contracts,
while 10 were in temporary positions.
The number of staff members on
long-term appointments increased by
66 or 23.57% compared to the staffing
profile in March 2015.
Due to the nature of the Company’s
operations, the distribution of staff
by gender was skewed in favour of
men. Two hundred and sixty three
staff members or 73.88% of the total
workforce were men, representing a

NAC recruited 52 new Fire and
Rescue Officers-in-training during
the reporting period, in an effort to
improve the shift strengths of the
Airport Fire and Rescue Services in
line with the ever-changing demands
from the regulator and employment
environment.
The table below depicts the staff
movements for the period:

Year

Management

General
staff

Contract
Employees

Total

Resourcing

Separation

2015/16

36

310

10

356

83

26

2014/15

33

247

19

299

15

21

Staff Age Profile

About 71% of NAC employees were below the age of
40, an indication that the Company has a very young
workforce, which allows it to capitalise on technological
advancements, as younger people generally tend to adapt
faster to technology.

40

2.10% increase in male representation
when compared to 31 March 2015.
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Out of the total 356 staff members on the Company’s
payroll, 355 come from previously disadvantaged
backgrounds and three have disabilities.
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Employee Turnover Rate

Employee Turnover Rate

12.00%
10.00%
8.00%
6.00%
4.00%

9.80%

7.20%

8.68%

2012-2014

2014-2015

2015-2016

2.00%
0.00%

The turnover rate increased by 1.48%
compared to prior year. At 8.68%, the
turnover rate was above the 5% goal
set out in the Strategic Plan, but still
in line with the industry norm.
Exit interviews conducted revealed
that most of the employees left for
better remuneration and employment
opportunities elsewhere. Other main
factors contributing to separation
included Company culture and
leadership styles.

Wellness Programme

The
NAC
employee
wellness
programme
involves
medical
examinations, which are conducted
through partnerships with various
healthcare providers.

of NAC employees voluntarily availed
themselves for testing.
The examinations carried out covered
various fields such as fitness and
nutrition.
In addition, NAC also provides ongoing occupational and personal
health
education
sessions
to
employees as part of the wellness
programme. Emphasis in the financial
year was placed on the impact of
addictive substances and healthy
nutritional meals.

Wage Negotiations

The Company has committed itself to
hosting a bi-annual voluntary health
testing day and employee fun day.

The NAC HR Relations team was able
to ensure stability for the Company
by negotiating and concluding a
wage and substantive agreement for
employees in the bargaining unit with
our strategic partner, the Namibia
Public Workers’ Union (Napwu).

The year under review marked the
second time that a voluntary health
testing day was held. More than 50%

Employees in the bargaining unit
received an 8% increase on the Total
Guaranteed Package, which resulted

in a constructive engagement with
the social partner marked by a high
degree of trust.
A total of 259 staff members are
signed up members of Napwu,
and 255 of these form part of the
bargaining unit. The Company
maintains a cordial relationship with
the recognised union, although both
parties serve different interests.
The recognition agreement between
NAC and Napwu governs the
framework of harmonising the
relationship.

Remuneration Report

Compensation plays an integral part
in achieving the Namibia Airports
Company’s
strategic
objectives.
Attracting and retaining the best
talent available in the country
remains central to the Company’s
remuneration strategy. We seek to
balance the compensation to external
as well as internal pressures.

Operating Structure
Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer

SBU - Human
Resources

SBU - Finance
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SBU - Business
Strategy

SBU - Engineering,
Projects & IT

SBU 1 - HKIA
Airport

SBU 2 - Eros,
Ondangwa, Walvis Bay
& Regional Airports
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BUSINESS
STRATEGY
A department responsible for
business strategy was created in
September 2014 to drive and monitor
organisational strategy, with the aim
to streamline operations and enhance
efficiency to improve productivity.

Corporate Communications and
Marketing

Various communication initiatives
and projects were undertaken and
supported by the department during
the period under review, in order to
share information with the public and
boost the image of the institution.
In addition to timely media query
responses, further information was
provided through press releases,
advertorials and adverts on matters
such as airport tariffs, airport
infrastructure developments and
management.
.
NAC was represented at local trade
shows such as the Namibia Tourism
Expo and at international platforms
such as the Indaba Africa Tourism
Expo in Durban, South Africa, amongst
others, where the Company shared
information on its services and plans.

Corporate Social Responsibility

NAC’s Corporate Social Responsibility
initiatives focus on environmental
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protection, tourism promotion, health
promotion, educational improvement,
industry-related social investment
and nation building endeavours. The
main goal of these initiatives is to leave
a positive mark on the communities in
which we operate.
During the period under review, the
Company continued its support of
the Dr Hage Geingob Cup, which
was celebrated at Windhoek’s
Independence Stadium in July 2015,
with South African Premier Soccer
League glamour club, Mamelodi
Sundowns, taking the cup for the
second time running after a 1-0
win over Namibia Premier League
giants African Stars. NAC committed
N$500,000 towards the organisation
of the cup in honour of President
Geingob’s tireless contribution to
the upliftment and development of
local sport, particularly football. The
competition is the first of its kind in
Namibia in which local clubs compete
against invited champions from
neighbouring countries.
In addition, NAC supported the Ericah
Shafudah Trust with a N$30,000
financial contribution. The Trust’s
main objective is to empower women
with a focus on the financial education
of Namibian girls. In 2015, the Trust
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selected three ladies to help them
with their tertiary education once
they have finished their secondary
schooling and are enrolled at the
University of Namibia (Unam) for the
next four years, to complete a degree
in Financial Management focusing
either on Bachelor of Accounting;
Bachelor of Chartered Accountancy or
Bachelor of Economics.
NAC also made another financial
contribution of N$50,000 towards
the successful hosting of the annual
Ongwediva Trade Fair.
As a strategic national tourism
partner, NAC deemed it necessary to
contribute N$300,000 towards the
participation of Namibia at the Colmar
Trade and Business Expo in November
2015 in France.

Business Development

The Business Strategy Department
was created to monitor and
identify new business development
opportunities and business growth
through commercial property and
development strategies and other
programmes aimed at increasing
Company revenue.
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Below is a progress report as per the
Strategic Plan deliverables in terms of
contribution towards the attainment
of 10% revenue growth:

Concession Rights

During the period under review,
NAC advertised several tenders/
Expressions of Interest (EoI), which
resulted in the awarding of concession
rights to various concessionaires, most
notably at Walvis Bay International
Airport.
These concessionaires include car
rental operators, retail and restaurant
operators, including internationally
renowned brand, Mugg & Bean. A
modern car park system, which offers
more parking convenience, was also
introduced at this airport.

Training and Development
Overview

The company set a target under the
learning and growth focus area to
achieve a 60/40 ratio on training and
development towards its compliance
personnel versus training related to
support services. This target was,
however, exceeded and reflects
a 95/05 ratio. A total of 95% of
the training budget was spent on
compliance positions and only 5% was
spent on support services.
The training interventions are
classified into three categories:
a) In-house training, whereby an
instructor is outsourced to train a
group of employees;
b) Individual employees are sent
to attend training programmes,
preferably at accredited
institutions;
c) Private study aid for employees to
obtain formal qualifications.

in NAMCARs and their corresponding
requirements in Chapters 3, 4, 5, 8, and
10 of ICAO Annex 14 and associated
documents.
The training budget for graduate
employees over the three-year period
is estimated at N$3.5 million.
During the first year, Graduate
Engineers acquire the basic knowledge
and skills in aerodrome planning,
engineering and maintenance, and
initiate some specialisation.
Completion of the proposed common
activities is a prerequisite before the
Engineers are assigned “aerodrome
engineering” roles at an aerodrome.
The
individualised
specialised
activities will determine future
specialisations, taking into account
individual capabilities and aspirations.
.

NAC’s total budget for training and
development is set at 4.5% of the
remuneration budget each year;
however, more resources were spent
on training those in compliance
positions during the year under
review to ensure that our airports are
licensed.

The Company’s strategy further
outlined two strategic priority areas
for developing our human resources
in light of the critical skills shortages
in the risk and compliance division
and engineering services, which
comprises of classroom and practical
interventions at international airports.

Training Interventions

Training of fire and safety personnel
took up more than 50% of the training
and development budget. It was
a challenge to undertake training
interventions in other pertinent areas
such as electrical, civil maintenance
and support services due to budgetary
constraints.

Three employees within the Risk and
Compliance Department are currently
undergoing a three-year training
programme, which will come to an
end in the next financial year. We are
glad to report that the Namibia Civil
Aviation Authority certified our Risk
and Compliance Officers as Quality
Assurance Officers.

It is unfortunate that the Company did
not have a certified trainer of trainers
during the period under review as
the previous two trainers left the
organisation for greener pastures.
The Business Strategy Department,
therefore, had to outsource the
services of accredited institutions to
provide training to the Fire Trainees,
an exercise which is very costly as
indicated below.

The total cost for training includes the
following:
• Flight tickets, accommodation and
meals for all foreign training.
• Local flight tickets, accommodation,
venues and meals for all in-house
training.
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A three-year development programme
for three Graduate Engineers was
developed and started in January
2016. The objective of the programme
is to provide the Engineers-in-training
with basic technical skills in aviation to
understand and implement aerodrome
engineering standards as contained

NAC is experiencing a critical shortage
of Fire Officers, which necessitated
the recruitment of 52 Fire Trainees,
who underwent training to qualify as
Fire and Rescue Officers in order to
address the Company’s shortcomings
as highlighted by the NCAA.

A total of 32 Fire Trainee Officers were
trained at Walvis Bay International
Airport and graduated in November
2015, while a further 20 were
scheduled to complete their training in
May 2016 at Eros Airport.
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Below is a list of the various training programmes conducted in the period under review:

a) In-house Training
Content of Training
Fire Fighting
ECP Basic Training
Radio Telephony
Aircraft Fire Fighting Equipment
Tactics & Techniques Course; Aircraft
Familiarisation; Basic Fire Fighting;
Breathing Apparatus; Pre-Incident
Planning; Aircraft Construction;
Airport Familiarisation
Basic Life Support
Defensive Driving
Rosenbauer on the Rosenbauer
Panther 4x4 & 6x6 CA5 & CA6
Code C Drivers Licence
Sub-Total

Institution

Management

Fire and Rescue Services
Indiza
Indiza
Spacewise
Indiza
Group 1
ACSA
Group 2

Cosmo Fire
Fighting
Technologies
Truck Driving
Academy

-

General
staff

Total

52

6

Cost
N$
1,610,600
370,440
105,398
575,250

6

300,000
180,000
68,000
300,000
3,329,688

Aviation Security
Training on Scanners

IBB

-

11

11

Basic AVSEC Training
Training on Scanners

ACSA
IBB

-

22
32

22
32

Maintenance
Advance Driving
Academy

14

Sub- Total
Forklift & Front Loader Training
Sub-Total
Airport Licensing

Crane Aviation

Airport Inspection

Obstacle Limitation Surfacing
GDMS
Sub-Total
Quality Management

55,350
55,350

20

12

32

Crane Aviation

20

12

32

Crane Aviation
Crane Aviation

20
20

12
12

32
32

20

32

20

32

Quality Management
Millennium
12
Management
Consultant

Procedures on Quality Management In-house
Sub-Total
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Aviation
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8,000
(logistics)
161,500
18,000
(logistics)
187,500

Part of
contract
95,000
(logistics)
Part of
contract
89,000
(venue)
250,000
250,000
684,000
Part of the
contract
89,000
(Venue)
100,000
189,000
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a) In-house Training (cont.)
Content of Training
Performance Management: Setting
PMS Targets
Sub- Total
NMDP
Sub –Total
Total: In-house Training

Institution

Management

Performance Management
TunElago
33
Investment
Leadership and Governance
University of
23
Stellenbosch

General
staff

Total

-

33

Cost
N$
71,071
71,071

10

33

333,000
333,000
4,778,538

b) Individual Training
Content of Training
AM06 Airport Design & Operations
Master Plan
Sub-Total

Institute

Management

Risk and Compliance
ENAC France
3

Financial Management
Credit Control
Financial Management
Sub Total

IATA
Amadi
Amadi

Instructors Course
Sub Total

Finance

General
staff

Total

-

3

Cost
N$
701,101
701,101

-

1
1
1

ACSA

Aviation Security
-

101,000
85,000
85,000
271,000

4

4

Quality Management
Sub Total

IATA

Quality Management
1

199,713
199,713

-

1

Office Administration
Sub Total

Amadi

Administration
-

121,000
121,000

3

3

Managing Training and
Organisational Development
Sub Total

Amadi

Organizational Development
-

239,000
239,000

1

1

85,000

Maintenance Planning

University of
Stellenbosch
Seckel
Consultancy
Crane Aviation

Practical Training and Advance user
– Aerodrome Safeguarding Software
Chapter 4 – Annex 14, DOC 9137,
Part 6, NAMCARs 139.01.34, 02.2(b)
Classroom Training Course, Practical Crane Aviation
Demonstration, Familiarisation Visit
and OJT - Airfield Ground Lighting
Tool for Implementing Chapter
4– Annex 14, DOC 9137, Part 6,
NAMCARs 139.01.34, 02.2(b)
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85,000

Legal

Corporate Governance
Project Management

1
1
1

1
Engineering
1

-

85,000

-

1

18,000

1

-

1

37,000

-

3

3

248,000

-

1

1

55,000
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b) Individual Training (cont.)
Content of Training

Institute

Classroom Training Course and
Crane Aviation
Familiarisation Visit -Airport
Environment
Chapter 5 & 10 – Annex 14, DOC
9157, Parts 4 & 6, NAMCARs
139.02.2 (c), 139.02.19
Classroom Training Course, Practical Crane Aviation
Demonstration, Familiarisation Visit
and OJT - Airport Design
Chapter 3 – Annex 14, DOC
9157,parts 1-3, NAMCARs 139.02.2
(a),
Sub Total
Total: Individual Training

Management
Engineering
-

General
staff

Total

3

3

240,000

3

3

248,000

-

Cost
N$

901,000
3,318,628

c) Private Study Aid
A total of N$ 704,271 was spent on private study loans in support of employees’ career development.

Cost
N$

Management

General staff

Total

Finance and Accounting

-

8

8

123,830

Administration

-

2

2

262,530

Human Resources

-

2

2

7,550

Masters in Leadership/MBA

4

1

3

310,361

26

704,271

Field of Study

Total: Private Study Aid

The total budget spent on training and development for the period under review amounted to N$8,801,437. It should,
however, be noted that travel and subsistence allowances are inclusive of the entire budget, therefore the actual amount
spent on the training and development budget amounts to N$9,820,256.

Organisational Development

Job descriptions were reviewed to re-align activities with the Strategic Plan. Performance Management Contracts for
all managers were developed and endorsed. A mock review on performance management was conducted to prepare
employees towards measuring performance and allowing them to understand performance management.

Strategic Plan

The Namibia Airports Company has committed itself to establish a well-developed Performance Management System that
effectively drives the achievement of its strategic objectives. As a result, the organisation adopted a Balanced Scorecard
Approach to provide a holistic assessment of performance which drives sustainable improvements.
Management identified the following six key priority areas to stabilise and grow the organisation in order to achieve the
turnaround objectives of the Strategic Plan 2014-2017:
1. Ensure safety & security of airports,
2. Rehabilitate six airports to improve level of compliance & upgrade three airports to meet capacity requirements
by 2017,
3. Ensure 100% airport infrastructure and equipment periodic maintenance to applicable standards,
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4. Improve revenue growth by 10% per annum to fund operational budget and secure funding of N$1.3 billion
for capital projects,
5. Ensure 90% customer satisfaction by 2017, and
6. Improve staff morale and productivity to attain 90% of corporate planned results.
Below are some of the key achievements during the period under review:

Customer Perspective
To ensure safety &
security of airports

•
•

To rehabilitate six
•
airports to improve level •
of compliance & upgrade
three airports to meet
•
capacity requirements
by 2017
•
•
•
To ensure 90% customer
satisfaction by 2017

•
•

•

Implementation of the new Airport Security Identification Card (ASIC) in line with the
Airport Security Programme (ASP) at HKIA.
Constant inspection of security equipment by the Namibian Police at the airports
(especially HKIA) contributed to less crime incidents.
Completion of Project Management System for NAC projects.
New contractor appointed for the Eros Airport Fire Station Project. Construction
thereof was completed in February 2016.
Designs for the Fire Fight Water System Project for Ondangwa, Rundu, Lüderitz,
Katima Mulilo and Eros airports were approved by NCCA. Advertising for construction
phase and adjudication was completed.
Walvis Bay Terminal upgrading was substantially completed as at year end.
Walvis Bay Runway Apron/ Taxiway and Rehabilitation Project was completed by
Ministry of Works and Transport (MWT) and will soon be handed over to NAC.
80% completion of Katima Mulilo Runway Apron/ Taxiway Rehabilitation Project by
MWT as at 31 March 2016.
Successful hosting of Ondangwa Airport Terminal Inauguration.
Pro-active interventions that highlighted NAC achievements - hosted media from
print houses in Botswana, SA, Mozambique, Zambia, Zimbabwe, and Angola; NAC
representation at the 2015 Colmar SITV Travel and Tourism Fair in France; World Travel
Market - Cape Town; Indaba Durban; World Routes Durban; Ongwediva Trade Fair and
Namibia Tourism Expo.
Six mandatory Quality Management System Procedures were developed, i.e. control
of documents, control of non-conforming products, control of records, control of
corrective actions, control of internal quality audit, and control of preventive actions.

Financial Perspective
•
To improve revenue
growth by 10% per
•
annum to fund
•
operational budget and
secure funding of N$ 1.3
billion for capital projects
by 2017
•
•
•

•

51% (N$40 million) debt collection of N$78 million outstanding as at 31 March 2016
excluding Government related receivables.
100% commercial facilities occupancy rate at HKIA and Eros airports.
Successful completion of the demarcation of the Drive-Through and Drop-off Zone
Project at the short-term public parking as well as the successful installation of the
Parking Management System (PMS) at HKIA, which represents a 10% increase in
parking revenue at the airport.
Significant growth of rental revenue at Eros Airport as a result of the implementation
of new market related tariffs for tenants backdated to January 2015.
Income from Ondangwa Airport commercial facilities increased to N$2.5 million during
the year as a result of the inauguration of the new terminal building.
Income of about N$315,000 during the year under review as a result of the
establishment of an electronic public Parking Management System at Ondangwa
Airport, including six Commercial Important Persons (CIP) parking.
Successful negotiation and agreement with the Association of Airlines (BAR), and
Aircraft Owners and Pilots Association (AOPA) on new aeronautical tariffs for the
2015/2016 and 2016/2017 financial years.
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Internal Business Process Perspective
To ensure 100% airport
infrastructure and
equipment periodic
maintenance to
applicable standards

•
•

Licensing of the HKIA Airport by NCAA.
Substantive progress achieved on the licensing process at Walvis Bay International
Airport.

Learning and Growth Perspective
To improve staff morale
and productivity to
attain 90% of corporate
planned results

•
•
•
•
•
•

Substantive appointment of the CEO & EXCO members.
EXCO/MANCO commitment to setting of the organisational and individual performance
targets for the year 2015/2016 in line with the Strategic Plan 2014-2017.
Achieved 95% ratio on key skills development (95% training on compliance, and 5% for
support services) against the target of 60:40 ratio.
90% progress made towards the training of Trainee Fire Officers.
Achieved 32% vs a target of 30% for internal promotions (22 out of 69 positions filled
during the period under review).
Twenty seven supervisors/middle managers enrolled for the Management
Development Programme (MDP) with the Stellenbosch Business School, as part of the
NAC’s Leadership/Management Development Program.

Issues That Need Urgent Leadership Attention:

1. Land ownership resolution with the Ministry of Defence regarding Rundu/Katima Mulilo/Ondangwa airports that still
belong to the Ministry of Defence through the Ministry of Works and Transport.
2. Government Master Agreement with the Ministry of Works and Transport is impacting the 10% revenue growth
objective as no payment was received from the Government of the Republic of Namibia in respect of facilities occupied
by Government agencies.
3. Skills Development – Leadership/Management Development and Staff Development Program – NAC operates in a
global and dynamic environment which requires highly specialised skills and regular staff refresher training due to
international standards and compliance requirements.
4. Attracting Talent – The Company’s inability to offer market related remuneration in specialised areas hampers
recruitment of key talent and consequently achievement of strategic objectives.
5. Advertisement Concession legal battle with Alliance Media is impacting on 10% revenue growth objectives.
6. Information and communication flow between MANCO and EXCO – There is an urgent need to revive monthly MANCO
meetings that should feed EXCO decision-making platforms. There seem to be a strong disconnect between EXCO and
MANCO in terms of information sharing which impact on teamwork and execution of duties.
7. Service Provider Payment Turnaround Times – There is an urgent need for mapping NAC’s payment process that can
help resolve bottlenecks in the system.
8. Institutional Risk Management Register – A need to track risks associated with strategy execution.
9. Legal Contracts/Advice Turnaround Times – Due to the volume of work required in this area, there is need to consider
recruiting a Personal Assistant to the CEO.
10. Company Policies – The Company’s key policies should be reviewed, developed and implemented.

48

Namibia Airports Company Annual Report 2015/16

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472

Namibia Airports Company Annual Report 2015/16

49

Annual Financial Statements

COMPANY
INFORMATION
Registration number
98 / 472
Registered address
5th and 8th Floors
			Sanlam Centre
			154 Independence Avenue
			Windhoek
Postal address		
PO Box 23061
			Windhoek
			NAMIBIA
Auditors			
Deloitte & Touche
Legal Advisors		
Lorentz Angula Inc
			Ellis Shilengudwa Inc
Nixon Marcus Public Law Office
Bankers			
First National Bank of Namibia Limited

Directors’ Responsibility For Financial Reporting
Namibia Airports Company Limited (“the Company”) directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements of the Company, comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of profit
and loss and comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes, and the directors’ report, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the
Companies Act of Namibia.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate
accounting records and an effective system of risk management.
The directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern and have no reason to
believe that the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead.
APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The annual financial statements of Namibia Airports Company Limited, as set out on pages 68 to 97, were approved by the
board of directors on 20 December 2016 and signed.

R.U. Kauta
Director
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B.G. Vugs
Director
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE
SHAREHOLDER OF NAMIBIA AIRPORTS COMPANY LIMITED
We have audited the accompanying
financial statements of the Namibia
Airports Company Limited, which
comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2016, and the
statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the period
then ended, and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a summary
of significant accounting policies, other
explanatory notes and directors’ report
as set out on pages 68 to 96.
Directors’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards and in the manner required
by the Companies Act of Namibia and
for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards

require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures
to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Opinion
In our opinion, these financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Namibia Airports
Company Limited as at 31 March 2016,
and its financial performance and cash
flows for the period then ended in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by the Namibian Companies
Act.
Emphasis of matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we
draw attention to the fact that the
supplementary information set out on
page 97 does not form part of the annual
financial statements and is presented
as additional information. We have not
audited this information and accordingly
do not express an opinion thereon.

We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Deloitte & Touche
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (Namibia)
Per: AA Akayombokwa
Partner
Windhoek, 24 February 2017
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REPORT OF THE
DIRECTORS
The directors present their report, which forms part of the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2016.
Nature of business
There were no changes in the nature of the Company’s business during the year under review.   The current
business of the Company is the management and operation of the following airports in Namibia:
- Eros Airport
- Hosea Kutako International Airport
- Katima Mulilo Airport
- Keetmanshoop Airport
- Lüderitz Airport
- Ondangwa Airport
- Rundu Airport
- Walvis Bay Airport
Financial results
The financial results of the Company are set out in the attached financial statements. Loss from operating activities
is N$72,322,401 (2015: N$39,351,239).
Projects undertaken by Government
The cost for the two projects being undertaken by the Ministry of Works and Transport at Walvis Bay and Katima
Mulilo Airports during the year is N$105,391,630 (2015: N$212,621,631).
Dividends
No dividend was declared during the year under review (2015: N$Nil).
Share capital
The authorised and issued share capital has remained unchanged.
Directorate
The following persons acted as directors during the year and to the date of this report:
N.N. Lewis – term ended on 31 July 2016
M.C. Boshoff – term ended on 31 July 2016
F. Aluteni – term ended on 31 July 2016
P.N. Shimutwikeni – term ended on 31 July 2016
A.T. Victor – term ended on 31 July 2016
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Rodgers R.U. Kauta – appointed on 01 August 2016
Beverley Gawanas-Vugs – appointed on 01 August 2016
Rudolph R. Rittmann – appointed on 01 August 2016
Lesenda G. Mohamed – appointed on 01 August 2016
Ipupa Kasheeta – appointed on 01 August 2016
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REPORT OF THE
DIRECTORS (CONT.)
Board and Committe meetings for the period 01 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Board

Ad hoc
meetings

Audit
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Tender and
Technical
Committee

Safety and
Security
Compliance
Committee

10

10

3

4

3

2

N.N. Lewis

10

9

3

0

0

2

M.C. Boshoff

10

4

2

0

3

0

F. Aluteni

10

10

0

4

3

1

A. Victor

8

10

3

3

0

0

P. Shimutwikeni

7

7

0

3

2

2

Board of Directors

Meetings Held
Attendance:

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary position as at 31 March 2016 and date of this report was held by the following people:
Mr L. Haifidi who acted as Company Secretary until 30 September 2015 and Ms E. Shaanika who was appointed on 01
October2015.
Business
5th Floor
Sanlam Centre
154 Independence Avenue

Postal
PO Box 23061
Windhoek
Windhoek

Going Concern
The directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable
future and are satisfied that the Company has access to adequate resources and facilities to be able to continue operations
for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the board have continued to adopt the going-concern basis in preparing the
financial statements (refer to note 27).
Subsequent events
There have been no material post balance sheet events, which could require disclosure or adjustment to the 31 March
2016 financial statements except for the matter noted on note 25.

Namibia Airports Company Limited Registration No. 98/472

Namibia Airports Company Annual Report 2015/16

55

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

N$

N$

2,550,084,129

2,136,870,213

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment

10

2,528,066,415

2,133,083,240

Capital work-in-progress

11

22,017,714

3,786,973

Trade and other receivables

12

-

-

447,642,363

605,203,918

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

12

208,582,248

122,900,059

Taxation receivable

21

6,395,093

6,395,093

Cash and cash equivalents

13

232,665,022

475,908,766

2,997,726,492

2,742,074,131

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and premium

15

39,087,181

39,087,181

Non distributable reserves

16

1,174,250,568

925,442,205

Retained earnings

1,288,410,136

1,275,759,354

Total equity

2,501,747,886

2,240,288,740

349,600,370

429,396,990

146,378,236

72,388,401

146,378,236

72,388,401

495,978,606

501,785,391

Total equity and liabilities

2,997,726,492

2,742,074,131
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Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation

17

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total liabilities
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

N$

N$

Revenue

4

222,974,319

209,141,311

Operating expenses

6

(314,793,431)

(260,780,134)

Other operating income

5

19,496,711

12,287,584

Operating loss

6

(72,322,401)

(39,351,239)

Finance income

7

5,354,520

11,738,921

Finance costs

7

(177,956)

(131,526)

5,176,564

11,607,395

(67,145,837)

(27,743,844)

79,796,620

10,678,978

12,650,783

(17,064,866)

-

-

12,650,783

(17,064,866)

Net finance income
Loss before tax for the year
Taxation
Profit / (Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Total comprehensive profit / (loss) for the year
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STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
Share capital
and premium

Non distributable
reserves

Retained
earnings

Total

N$

N$

N$

N$

39,087,181

348,892,527

1,292,824,220

1,680,803,928

Government grant

-

576,549,678

-

576,549,678

Funds transferred to the company

-

363,928,047

-

363,928,047

Direct government projects

-

212,621,631

-

212,621,631

-

-

(17,064,866)

(17,064,866)

39,087,181

925,442,205

1,275,759,354

2,240,288,740

Government grant

-

248,808,363

-

248,808,363

Funds transferred to the company

-

143,416,733

-

143,416,733

Direct government projects

-

105,391,630

-

105,391,630

-

-

12,650,782

12,650,782

39,087,181

1,174,250,568

1,288,410,136

2,501,747,886

Balance as at 01 April 2014
Total government grant received for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year

Balance as at 01 April 2015
Total government grant received for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2016
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STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Notes

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

N$

N$

(67,145,837)

(27,743,844)

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation

6

63,586,731

52,849,550

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

5

(7,119)

(121,174)

Loss on scrapping of property and equipment

6

6,501,985

11,499,071

Net finance income

7

(5,176,564)

(11,607,395)

(2,240,804)

24,876,208

(85,682,188)

(48,577,483)

73,989,835

10,210,243

(13,933,156)

(13,491,032)

Change in trade and other receivables
Change in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operating activities

Interest paid

7

(177,956)

(131,526)

Income tax paid

21

-

-

(14,111,112)

(13,622,558)

5,354,520

11,738,921

236,253

781,739

(378,140,138)

(206,771,086)

(372,549,364)

(194,250,426)

143,416,733

363,928,047

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

143,416,733

363,928,047

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

243,243,744

156,055,064

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

7

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

10 ; 11

Net cash utilised from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Government grant

16

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

13

475,908,766

319,853,703

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

13

232,665,022

475,908,766
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Principal accounting policies and presentation
of financial statements
1.1 Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and its interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
the requirements of the Namibian Companies Act, 1973.
1.2 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment property
and certain financial instruments that are carried at fair
value.
1.3 Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Namibia
Dollar, which is the Company’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in Namibia Dollar have
been rounded to the nearest Namibia Dollar.
1.4 Property and equipment
All property and equipment is shown at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, except for
land, which is shown at cost less impairment. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Land and buildings comprise mainly
roads and runways, terminal buildings and offices. All
other repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged
to the profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method
to allocate the cost of each asset less its residual value
over its estimated useful life for current and comparative
period as follows:
Buildings, roads and runways:
- Buildings
- Leasehold improvements
- Roads and runways

40 years
3 years
20 years

Computers, furnitures and other equipment:
- Airport equipment
5 years
- Computer equipment
5 years
- Office equipment and furniture
5 years
Motor vehicles:
- Fire fighting vehicles
- Motor vehicles
60

15 years
5 years
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. An
asset’s carrying amount  is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the disposal proceeds with the carrying
amount and are included in the profit or loss.
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed.
1.5 Capital work in progress
Property and equipment under construction by a
supplier is classified as capital work in progress until
construction is completed and shown at cost less
impairment. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
1.6 Impairment of assets
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets held and used is recognised
and measured by a comparison of the carrying amount
of an asset with the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less cost to sell. Value in use is measured
as the present value of future cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of
an asset is not recoverable, an impairment charge
amounting to the carrying amount of the asset that
exceeds the recoverable amount is recognised. The
review for impairment is carried out at the level where
discrete cash flows occur that are independent of other
cash flows.
An impairment loss related to intangible assets is
reversed if and to the extent there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. The loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss.
1.7 Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets
The Company initially recognises loans, receivables and
deposits on the date that they are originated. All other
financial assets are recognised initially on the trade
date at which the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
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1.7 Financial instruments (cont.)
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that is created or retained
by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or
liability.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Company has a legal right
to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
The Company has the following non-derivative financial
assets: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or  
loss if it is classified as held for trading or is designated
as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are
designated at fair value through profit or loss if Company
manages such investments and makes purchases and
sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance
with the Company’s investment policy. Upon initial
recognition attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair values, and
changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Such assets are recognised initially
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, less any impairment
losses. Loans and receivables are included in trade
and other receivables in the statement of financial                                                               
position.
Loans and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call
deposits with original maturities of three months or less
and unit trust investments in money market funds that
are of a short term nature.
(ii) Financial liabilities
The Company initially recognises liabilities on the date
that they are originated. All other financial liabilities
are recognised initially on the trade date at which the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.
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The Company derecognises a financial liability when
its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire.
      The Company has the following non-derivative financial
liabilities: trade and other payables.
Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.
Trade payables
Trade payables are carried at the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods or services
that have been received or supplied and invoiced or
formally agreed with the supplier.
1.8 Operating lease assets
1.8.1 Operating leases - lessee
Leases where the lessor retains a significant portion
of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
1.8.2 Operating leases - lessor
Assets leased to third parties under operating leases
are included in property, plant and equipment in the
statement of financial position. These are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent
with similar owned property, plant and equipment.
Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
1.9 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made.
1.10 Deferred and current tax
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. However, if the deferred tax
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the profit or loss. Current tax
is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at
the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
1.11 Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan
The company established its own fund called NAC
Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution fund.
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as an expense as they fall due. The NAC
Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution fund,
covers all the company’s employees and is governed by
the Namibian Pension Fund Act.
The contribution is discounted if it is due more than
12 months after the end of the year-end in which the
employees render the related services. The discount rate
used is determined by reference to the market yields at
the statement of financial position date on high quality
corporate bonds or government bonds as appropriate.
Short term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured
on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid under short-term
bonus and annual leave if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
1.12 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises landing fees, passenger service,
aircraft parking, motor vehicle parking fees, concession
revenue, passenger handling fees, ramp handling and
percentage of turnover fees, net of Value Added Tax, and
is recognised upon performance of services and when
the customer has accepted the service and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably assured.
Other revenues earned by the Company are recognised
on the following basis:
Rental income - recognised in line with note 1.8.2.
1.13 Dividends
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholder
is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Board of Directors.
1.14 Government grants
IAS 20 does not apply to receipts received by
government owned entities from the government in
their capacity as owners of entity, hence the entity has
adopted the Conceptual Framework for guidance on the
appropriate recognition, measurement and presentation
of transactions in the financial statements. In terms of the
Conceptual Frameworks the grants will be recognised
directly in equity as non-distributable reserves.
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2. Significant judgements
Preparing the financial statements, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards, requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Significant judgements include:
Loans and receivables
The Company assesses its trade receivables or loans
for impairment at each reporting date. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the
profit or loss, the Company makes judgements as to
whether there is observable data indicating a measurable
decrease in the future cash flows from a financial asset.
Useful lives of assets
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its
useful life taking into account residual values where
appropriate. In assessing useful lives, factors such as
technological innovation, product life cycles as well as
maintenance programmes are taken into account.
Residual values
The residual values of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each reporting date. Residual value
assessments consider issues such as future market
conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected
disposal values.
Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Board reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
its carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount
and the impairment losses are recognised as an expense
immediately.
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount but limited to the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
Fair value estimation
In assessing the fair value of financial instruments,
the Company uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each reporting date. Quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for the specific or similar instruments are
used for the relevant financial instruments.
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The nominal value less estimated credit adjustment
of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair value. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the
Company for similar financial instruments.

“Liquidity risk is managed by Namibia Airports
Company’s Corporate   Finance and Supply chain
division in accordance with policies and guidelines
formulated by the Company’s Board of Directors. In
terms of its borrowing requirements the company
ensures that sufficient facilities exist with reputable
financial institutions to meet its immediate obligations.

Capitalisation of Government projects
Two major upgrade projects on two airports were
undertaken by government directly. Management had to
assess the nature of the projects and evaluate the impact
thereof on the accounting records of the company.
Management concluded that the work in progress on
these projects had to be capitalised even though they
were not yet completed and handed over to the company.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices,
such as interest rates will affect the Company’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.
Other price risk
Other price risk, which is defined as the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to
the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market, has no material impact on the Company.

Government Debtors
“There are differing views between the company and
the line ministry as to whether the company should
be charging rental for space at its airports occupied
by various government departments. The line ministry
believes the space should not be paid for as these
departments are providing essential services, the
company on the other hand believes the space is
commercial space taken up, and therefore should be
paid for. There is currently an ongoing engagement with
the line ministry to find a common understanding to this
matter. The directors whilst the engagement continues
believe that these governments debtors are valid and
therefore collectable.”

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk, which is defined as the risk
that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
currency rates, has no material impact on the Company.
Future cash flows from financial instruments are not
dependent on changes in foreign currency rates due to
the fact that the overwhelming majority of transactions
are executed in Namibia Dollar, the functional currency
of the Company.

3. Financial risk management
(i)

Financial risk factors
In the normal course of its operations, the Company is
exposed to foreign currency, interest rate, liquidity and
credit risk. The Company manages these risks as follows:

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk, which is defined as the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, is
limited to future returns from cash and cash equivalents.
The Company’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

Credit risk
Credit risk, which is defined as the risk that one party to
a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation, is limited
to cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables.
The following principles and practices are administered
to mitigate credit risk exposure:
-

Facilities are advanced to customers subject
to credit history checks.
Cash and cash equivalents are evenly spread
amongst reputable financial institutions to limit the
exposure to any one financial institution.
Cash transactions are dealt making use of services
offered by reputable financial institutions.

The following principles and practices are administered to
mitigate interest rate risk exposure:
Cash transactions are administered making use of
services offered by reputable financial institutions who
offer competitive rates of return that are relatively close
to the inflation of the respective periods.
-

Flexible short term funding is actively managed by
making use of reputable financial institutions to earn fair
returns on liquid short term investments.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk, which is defined as the risk that an entity
will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities, is limited to trade and other
payables.
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

32,742,808

30,822,732

132,965,063

122,256,749

Aircraft parking fees

4,511,499

3,939,856

After-hours operating fees

1,000,819

223,857

Motor vehicle parking fees

8,694,947

7,162,010

32,978,932

33,987,763

Concession revenue

1,445,055

1,339,655

Commission income

4,617,610

5,827,665

Handling fees

4,017,586

3,581,024

222,974,319

209,141,311

15,674,781

9,621,033

Foreign exchange gain

5,295

23,120

Profit on disposal of property and equipment

7,119

121,174

Sundry income (costs recovered, tender document fees etc.)

1,647,272

923,522

Water and electricity

2,162,244

1,598,735

19,496,711

12,287,584

63,586,731

52,849,550

Operating lease rentals

3,612,343

3,121,725

Land and building

3,374,147

3,108,998

Office equipment

238,196

12,727

Auditors’ remuneration:

275,517

250,470

Current year fees

275,517

250,470

Directors’ emoluments (refer to note 9)

947,496

872,660

Revenue
Revenue derived from continuing operations comprises:
Landing fees
Passenger service fees

Rental income

5.

Other operating income
Fair value gains on investments

6.

Operating expenses

6.1

The following items have been charged in arriving at operating loss:
Depreciation
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6.

Operating expenses (continued)

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

118,095,379

91,674,066

6,501,985

11,499,071

Consulting fees

10,153,625

14,283,631

Repairs and maintenance:

20,303,019

15,834,189

Land, building, roads and runways

11,287,479

9,812,818

4,904,190

3,799,101

39,319

(59,515)

4,072,032

2,281,785

10,312,929

7,860,162

102,987,923

79,426,180

524,284

409,288

Pension costs

7,945,917

6,084,040

Medical aid contributions

6,357,642

5,086,512

-

542,890

279,613

125,156

118,095,379

91,674,066

346

285

Salaries and allowances

17,559,600

16,322,413

Post retirement benefits

3,233,422

1,621,666

Bonus

1,095,593

2,547,437

21,888,615

20,491,516

Staff costs (refer to 6.2)
Loss on scrapping of property and equipment

Office and other equipment
Computer equipment
Motor vehicles
Allowance for impairment of trade debtors
6.2

Staff costs
Salaries and wages
Social security expenses

Group life assurance
Other staff cost
Number of employees at the end of the year
- Full time
Remuneration paid to management personnel including key management:
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7.

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

Finance income

5,354,520

11,738,921

Bank balances

1,849,297

583,358

Short term investments

3,505,223

11,155,563

(177,956)

(131,526)

-

-

(177,956)

(131,526)

5,176,564

11,607,395

-

-

79,796,620

10,678,978

79,796,620

10,678,978

(67,145,837)

(27,743,844)

21,486,668

9,155,469

5,015,930

3,174,941

(232,793)

(543,629)

Other (Repair and maintenance on runways, taxiways and related
works)

43,849,199

776,235

Impairments / scrapping / Write off which are capital in nature

(2,080,635)

(3,794,693)

(11,758,250)

1,910,655

79,796,620

10,678,978

333,899,329

72,919,081

Net finance income

Finance costs
Bank Loans and over drafts
Charged by other service providers

8.

Taxation
Current tax
Deferred tax

Reconciliation of the tax expense			
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense

Accounting loss before tax
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 32% (2015: 33%)
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Prior year over/(under) provision			
Tax charge calculated			
Tax loss available for utilisation against future taxable income
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9.

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

F. Aluteni

199,808

273,549

M. Boshoff

160,635

185,450

N. Lewis

232,338

256,478

P.N. Shimutwikeni

178,121

-

A.T. Victor

176,594

157,183

947,496

872,660

Directors’ emoluments
Non-Executive Directors:

10.

Property and equipment
Land, buildings,
roads and
runways

Work in
progress

N$

N$

Computers,
furniture and
other
equipment
N$

Motor
vehicles

TOTAL

N$

N$

1,918,932,928

464,926,585

40,908,163

401,620

334,202,686

14,691,668

10,613,422

359,909,397

-

105,391,630

-

-

105,391,630

Disposal

-

-

-

(427,127)

(427,127)

Transfers

97,573,460

(210,592,155)

113,018,695

-

-

Scrappings

(8,997,739)

-

-

-

(8,997,739)

2,007,910,269

693,928,746

168,618,526

378,388,625

-

31,023,362

55,887,326

465,299,313

34,646,897

-

13,854,111

15,085,723

63,586,731

-

-

-

(197,993)

(197,993)

(2,495,754)

-

-

-

(2,495,754)

410,539,768

-

44,877,473

70,775,056

526,192,297

1,597,370,502

693,928,746

123,741,053

Period ended 31 March 2016
Cost
At 01 April 2015
Additions
- Own
- Government projects

At 31 March 2016

173,614,876 2,598,382,552

183,801,171 3,054,258,713

Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April 2015
Current year depreciation charge
Disposal
Scrappings
At 31 March 2016
Closing carrying value - 2016
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10.

Property and equipment (continued)
Land, buildings,
roads and
runways

Work in
progress

N$

N$

Computers,
furniture and
other
equipment
N$

Motor
vehicles

TOTAL

N$

N$

Period ended 31 March 2015
Cost
At 01 April 2014
Additions
- Own
- Government projects

1,912,949,468

114,756,303

32,923,077

80,502,479 2,141,131,327

3,046,600

89,283,370

7,985,086

5,060,115

205,375,171

-

212,621,631

-

-

212,621,631

Disposal

-

-

-

(1,187,295)

(1,187,295)

Transfers

17,810,778

(51,734,719)

-

33,923,941

-

-

-

-

55,315,636

55,315,636

(14,873,918)

-

-

-

(14,873,918)

1,918,932,928

464,926,585

40,908,163

343,768,196

-

27,453,864

45,129,279

416,351,339

37,995,276

-

3,569,498

11,284,777

52,849,550

-

-

-

(526,730)

(526,730)

(3,374,847)

-

-

-

(3,374,847)

378,388,625

-

31,023,362

55,887,326

465,299,312

1,540,544,303

464,926,585

9,884,801

Transfers from capital work in progress
Scrappings
At 31 March 2015

173,614,876 2,598,382,552

Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April 2014
Depreciation charge
Disposal
Scrappings
At 31 March 2015
Closing carrying value - 2015

117,727,550 2,133,083,240

Details of freehold land and buildings are recorded in a register, which may be inspected at the Company’s registered office.
Land and buildings with a carrying value of   N$7,217,467   (2015: N$7,286,105) transferred to Namibia Airports Company
Limited from the Ministry of Works and Transport in terms of Section 14 of the Namibia Airports Company Act No. 25 of 1998
has not yet been registered in the name of the Company.
Two projects being undertaken by the Ministry of Works and Transport at Walvis Bay and Katima Mulilo Airports with a carrying
value of N$318,013,261  (2015: N$212,621,631) are included in working in progress.

11.

Capital work in progress
Balance at beginning of the year
Addition during the year
Transfer to property and equipment during the year
Balance at year end

(Note 11.1)
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31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

3,786,973

57,706,694

18,230,741

1,395,915

22,017,714

59,102,609

-

(55,315,636)

22,017,714

3,786,973
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11.1

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

7,017,714

3,786,973

15,000,000

-

22,017,714

3,786,973

Trade receivables

112,160,328

69,787,407

Gross trade receivables

158,248,712

104,770,671

Allowance for impairment

(46,088,384)

(34,983,264)

Staff debtors

727,129

557,126

GST receivable from the Receiver of Revenue

253,856

253,856

VAT receivable from the Receiver of Revenue

74,957,481

30,819,049

6,155,500

7,154,668

166,812

166,812

14,414,997

14,414,997

(253,856)

(253,856)

96,421,919

53,112,652

208,582,247

122,900,059

253,856

253,856

-

-

(253,856)

(253,856)

-

-

Gross trade receivables

158,248,712

104,770,671

Impairment

(46,088,384)

(34,983,264)

74,957,481

30,819,049

6,155,500

7,154,668

166,812

166,812

14,414,997

14,414,997

727,129

557,126

208,582,247

122,900,059

208,582,247

122,900,059

Capital work in progress comprises
ERP system
Servitude over a portion of a farm that belongs to Hartebeest
Properties CC

12.

Trade and other receivables

Other receivables

Straight-lining of lease rentals
Sundry receivables
Prepaid expenses
Allowance for impairment

Non-current
GST receivable from the Receiver of Revenue
Staff debtors
Impairment
Current

VAT receivable from the Receiver of Revenue
Straight-lining of lease rentals
Sundry receivables
Prepaid expenses
Staff debtors

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables is
disclosed in note 23.
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13.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances
Short term investments

31 March 2015
N$

31 March 2015
N$

50,102,410

71,621,610

182,537,435

404,258,212

25,177

28,944

232,665,022

475,908,766

Cash on hand

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment losses related to cash and cash equivalents is
disclosed in note 23.

14.

Financial assets by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables

  113,054,268  

   70,511,346  

Cash and cash equivalents

232,665,022

475,908,766

345,719,290  

546,420,112

90,000,000

90,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

1

1

39,087,180

39,087,180

39,087,181

39,087,181

15.

Share capital and premium

Authorised
Ordinary shares
90 000 000 (2015: 90 000 000) shares of N$ 1 each
Preference shares
10 000 000 (2015: 10 000 000) shares of N$ 1 each
Issued
Ordinary shares
1 (2015: 1) share of N$ 1
Share premium

The remaining unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors until the next annual general meeting.

16.

Non-distributable reserve

In prior years, Government grants received were initially recognised as deferred revenue when there was a reasonable
assurance that they will be received and the Company would comply with the conditions associated with the grant, and
were then recognised through profit and loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset upon
completion of these projects.
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16.

Non-distributable reserve (continued)

However, IAS 20 does not apply to receipts received by government owned entities from the government in their
capacity as owners of entity, hence the entity has adopted the Conceptual Framework for guidance on the appropriate
recognition, measurement and presentation of transactions in the financial statements. In terms of the Conceptual
Frameworks the grants will be recognised directly in equity as non-distributable reserves.
31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

At beginning of the year

925,442,205

348,892,527

Amount received during the year

248,808,363

576,549,678

- Funds received

143,416,733

363,928,047

-  Grant received by virtue of projects undertaken by Ministry
of Works and Transport

105,391,630

212,621,631

1,174,250,568

925,442,205

The movement is as follows

Balance at end of the year

17.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using a principal tax rate of  32%
(2015: 33%).
The movement on the deferred account is as follows:
At beginning of year

429,396,990

440,075,968

(68,038,369)

(8,768,323)

  (13,012,030)

-

Prior year adjustment

   1,253,779  

(1,910,655)

At end of year

349,600,370

429,396,990

Movements during year attributable to:
Temporary differences
Deferred tax - rate change

Deferred tax liabilities may be analysed as follows:
Capital allowances

451,080,673

447,490,182

Operating leases

1,969,761

2,361,040

Prepaid expenses

4,612,799

4,756,950

(1,215,077)

(1,147,885)

(106,847,786)

(24,063,297)

349,600,370

429,396,990

Income received in advance
Tax loss utilised
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31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

Trade payables

65,856,339

16,589,528

Other payables

80,521,896

55,798,873

Provision for bonuses

1,280,206

988,488

Provisions ( note 25 )

15,000,000

-

Provision for leave pay

10,988,909

7,630,642

Accrued expenses and other sundry payables

15,663,414

20,675,625

Accrual penalties, interest

11,668,455

14,800,150

Contract Retentions

19,271,738

6,420,738

Advance Rental Income

3,797,116

3,478,442

Rental deposits

2,852,059

1,804,788

146,378,236

72,388,401

18.

Trade and other payables

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and impairment losses related to trade and other payables
is disclosed in note 23.

19.

Financial liabilities by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line item below:
Trade and other payables

20.

84,371,812

39,069,941

Related parties

Shareholder and directors
The Government of the Republic of Namibia is the sole shareholder of the Company, effectively resulting in
all state owned enterprises being related parties.
The directors are listed in the report of the directors.
Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel employed by the Company during the period are as follows:

• T.S. El-Kallawi
• T. Sem
• L. Haifidi
• O. Hamwele
			
• S. Katoma
• A. Theart
• L. Shipuata
• J.H. Soroses
			
• C. Silombela
• E. Shaanika
• V. R Ruswa

Chief Executive Officer
Strategic Executive: Business Strategy
Legal advisor and Company Secretary
Strategic Executive: Human Resources and Administration - resigned
on 31 January 2016
Acting Strategic Executive: Finance until 31 August 2016
Strategic Executive: Strategic Business Unit 1
Strategic Executive: Strategic Business Unit 2
Acting Strategic Executive: Human Resources and Administration - appointed
on 01 February 2016
Strategic Executive: Projects, IT and Engineering
Company Secretary
Strategic Executive: Finance - appointed on 01 September 2016
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20. Related parties (continued)

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

Salaries and allowances

7,613,573

6,425,826

Company contributions

876,067

502,036

Bonus

560,863

873,188

9,050,504

7,801,050

During the period under review key management personnel were
remunerated as follows:

Remuneration of key management personnel is included in staff costs in note 6.2.
Directors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 9.
Details of significant amounts, with a value more than N$50,000, receivable/(payable) or revenue/(purchases) with these
related parties consisting of fellow State Owned Entities are given below:

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

Amount
receivable/
(payable)

Impairment

Amount
receivable/
(payable)

Impairment

89,113,627

(5,031,647)

39,850,305

-

Ministry of Defence

4,652,530

(4,652,530)

3,816,831

(3,816,831)

Ministry of Finance

3,197,324

(3,197,324)

2,628,948

(2,628,948)

Ministry of Foreign Affairs

2,809,113

(2,809,113)

2,535,728

(2,535,728)

53,802

(53,802)

(22,587)

-

Ministry of Safety and Security

6,295,920

(6,295,920)

5,451,949

(5,451,949)

Ministry of Works and Transport

16,019,077

(16,019,077)

12,634,803

(12,634,803)

372,233

-

192,951

-

(1,683,206)

-

(669,124)

-

Telecom Namibia Limited

(790,868)

-

(74,385)

-

Namibia Water Corporation Limited (NamWater)

(441,102)

-

(165,046)

-

(6,219,167)

-

(430,087)

-

(173,687)

-

(98,353)

-

Related parties
Air Namibia (Proprietary) Limited

Ministry of Home Affairs

Mobile Telecommunication
NamPower (Proprietary) Limited

City of Windhoek
Erongo Regional Distributor Limited
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20. Related parties (continued)
31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

Revenue

Purchases

Revenue

Purchases

102,751,779

-

90,801,396

-

Ministry of Agriculture

102,923

-

94,056

-

Ministry of Defence

835,716

-

777,478

-

Ministry of Finance

661,338

-

645,164

-

Ministry of Foreign Affairs

533,549

-

532,657

-

Ministry of Home Affairs

186,297

-

230,796

-

Ministry of Safety and Security

853,053

-

872,231

-

3,601,474

-

7,829,525

-

23,689

-

65,700

-

3,432

(144,500)

(20,127)

(121,915)

NamPower (Proprietary) Limited

148,331

(9,541,652)

158,071

(8,219,472)

Mobile Telecommunication Limited

786,474

-

170,996

(2,951,207)

Namibia Water Corporation Limited

-

(2,203,796)

-

(2,051,482)

New Era

-

(119,030)

-

(151,604)

Municipality of Walvis Bay

-

(69,619)

-

(72,712)

Roads Contractor Company Limited

-

-

-

(93,438)

City of Windhoek

-

(7,238,915)

-

(3,187,557)

Erongo Regional Distributor Limited

-

(1,339,336)

-

(1,078,275)

Keetmanshoop Municipality

-

(262,453)

-

(253,676)

Nored Electricity

-

(3,167,641)

-

(497,749)

Ondangwa Town Council

-

(483,082)

-

(581,565)

Air Namibia (Proprietary) Limited

Ministry of Works and Transport
Namdeb Diamond Corporation (Pty) Ltd
Nampost Courier Services

The transactions above were made on commercial terms and conditions.

21.

Income tax paid

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

6,395,093

6,395,093

Charge for the year

-

-

Paid during the year

-

-

6,395,093

6,395,093

Opening balance receivable/(payable)

Closing balance receivable/(payable)
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22.

Commitments

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

Not later than 1 year

3,124,100

2,891,064

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

1,905,302

5,029,402

5,029,402

7,920,466

Operating lease commitments
The future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows:

Capital commitments
Major capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date, but not recognised in the financial statements amounts to
N$105,354,641 (2015: N$232,964,960). At year end the value of capital expenditure approved by the Board of Directors
amounts to N$666,908,680  (2015: N$409,076,896). The planned expenditure will be financed from working capital generated
within the Company and from financing activities.

23.

Risk management

23.1

Capital risk management

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.
23.2

Financial instruments

Credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was:
Trade and other receivables

113,054,268

70,511,346

Cash and cash equivalents

232,665,022

475,908,766

345,719,290

546,420,112

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets at the reporting date by type of counterpart was:
The company’s largest customer, Air Namibia, accounts for N$89 million of trade and other receivables as at 31 March 2016
(31 March 2015: N$40 million)
The financial institutions the company invested with are as follows:
Bank Windhoek Limited

122,441,139

183,177,901

First National Bank of Namibia Limited

39,452,451

86,256,874

Sanlam Namibia Trust Managers Limited

32,926,130

30,931,663

Old Mutual Investment Group (Namibia) Ltd

37,820,125

175,513,384

232,639,846

475,879,822

The company only invested with major banks and financial institutions with high quality credit standing and its investment
policy limits exposure to any one counterparty.
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23.2

Financial instruments (continued)
The ageing of trade receivables and allowance for impairment losses at the reporting date are as follows:
31 March 2016
N$
Gross

Impairment

31 March 2015
N$
Gross

Impairment

1-30 days

18,582,642

308,970

16,636,333

896,477

31-60 days

16,620,290

292,947

13,935,115

878,029

61-90 days

10,902,921

287,818

11,134,978

813,781

91-120 days

9,480,653

298,852

10,373,718

814,797

102,662,207

44,899,798

52,690,527

31,580,180

158,248,712

46,088,384

104,770,671

34,983,264

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

Past due for 31 – 60 days

16,327,343

13,057,086

Past due for 61 – 90 days

10,615,103

10,321,197

Past due for 91 – 120 days

9,181,801

9,558,921

57,762,409

21,110,347

93,886,656

54,047,551

120 plus days

Past due but not impaired

Past due for more than 120 days

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of loans and 						
receivables during the year was as follows:
Opening Balance

35,237,120

26,197,934

Impairment loss recognised

11,105,121

9,039,186

- Amount excluding VAT ( refer to note 6.1)

10,312,929

7,860,162

792,192

1,179,024

46,342,241

35,237,120

- VAT included
Closing Balance

Apart from the aforementioned no other impairment is necessary in respect of trade and other receivables.
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Liquidity risk
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the
impact of netting agreements:
Trade and other payables
Carrying
amount
N$

Contractual
cash flows
N$

Less than 1
year
N$

Between 2 and
5 years
N$

More than 5
years
N$

31 March 2016

84,371,812

(84,371,812)

84,371,812

-

-

31 March 2015

  39,069,941

( 39,069,941)

  39,069,941

-

-

The carrying amount of financial liabilities represents the maximum exposure to liquidity risk, which at the reporting
date was:

Trade and other payables

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

84,371,812

39,069,941

Currency risk
The Company has no material exposure to foreign currency risk due to the fact that future cash flows from financial instruments
are not dependent on changes in foreign currency rates. The overwhelming majority of transactions are executed in Namibia
Dollar.
Interest rate risk
The Company’s interest rate profile of interest-bearing financial instruments was:
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets

232,665,022

475,908,766

232,665,022

475,908,766

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2015.
Profit or loss

Equity

100 bp increase

100 bp decrease

100 bp increase

100 bp decrease

N$

N$

N$

N$

2,326,650

(2,326,650)

2,326,650

(2,326,650)

4,759,088

(4,759,088)

4,759,088

(4,759,088)

31 March 2016
Variable rate instruments
31 March 2015
Variable rate instruments
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23.2

Financial instruments (continued)

Fair values
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial
position, are as follows:
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Carrying amount

Fair value

Carrying amount

Fair value

N$

N$

N$

N$

182,537,435

182,537,435

404,258,212

404,258,212

50,102,410

50,102,410

71,621,610

71,621,610

25,177

25,177

28,944

28,944

113,054,268

113,054,268

70,511,346

70,511,346

163,181,856

163,181,856

142,161,898

142,161,898

84,371,812

84,371,812

39,069,941

39,069,941

Assets carried at fair value
Short term investments
Assets carried at amortised cost
Bank balances
Cash on hand
Trade and other receivables

Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Trade and other payables

The basis for determining fair values is disclosed in note 2.
Fair value hierarchy
IRFS 13 requires that an entity discloses for each class of assets and liabilities measured at fair value the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised in their entirety. The fair value hierarchy reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the fair value measurements. The level in the fair value hierarchy within the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety shall be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement in its entirety.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
Level 1 - Inputs comprise unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that entity can access
at the measurement date:
Level 2 - Inputs comprise other observable inputs for the asset or liability not included within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy;
and
Level 3 - Inputs comprise unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (including the entity’s own data, which are adjusted, if
necessary, to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in the circumstance).
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Fair value hierarchy cont.
Some of the company’s financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Except
as detailed in the following table, the directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

Total instruments at fair value

Financial instrument

Valuation technique applied

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

N$

N$

N$

N$

232,639,846

232,639,846

-

-

During the reporting period ending 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015), there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

24.

Defined contribution benefits

The company established the Namibia Airports Company Provident Fund on 01 April 2012. The Fund is a defined contribution
fund for all qualifying employees. The total expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income represents the
contributions payable to the Fund at the rate of 16% of pensionable remuneration contributed by the employer. Employees
contribute to the fund at a rate of 7% or 9% of pensionable remuneration.

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

Employer contribution

5,527,595

4,162,662

Employees contribution

2,418,323

1,921,379

Total contributions for the period

7,945,917

6,084,041

Contributions to the pension fund:

Although the statutory actuarial valuation was not performed due to the fact that the fund was only established on 01 April 2012,
the fund is in a sound financial position. The actuaries have been appointed and the first statutory actuarial valuation will be
performed before 2016 as per requirements of the Pension Act, 1956, as amended.

25

Contingent liabilities and Provision

Litigations
The company is a defendant in various legal actions. In the opinion of management, after taking appropriate legal advice,
the outcome of some actions might give rise to possible loss amounting to the amount claimed plus cost not exceeding
N$5,302,486 ( 2015: N$ Nil)
Provision
In the aftermath of the downgrade of Hosea Kutako International Airport, Namibia Airports Company erected an emergency
access road on a portion of a farm adjacent to Hosea Kutako International Airport that belongs to Hartebeest Properties CC.
Hartebeest Properties CC took legal action against NAC for the removal of the access road. The High Court of Namibia ruled
that Namibia Airports Company pay N$15,000,000 to Hartebeest Properties CC upon registration of a servitude on the portion
of the farm covered by the access road. A provision for N$15,000,000 (2015: Nil) has been raised in the financial statements
in this regard. The servitude will be registered in Namibia Airports Company upon payment of the N$15 million. In September
2016, the Ministry of Works and Transport undertook to settle the N$15 million on behalf of the company from the 2016/2017
Government grant allocated to the company.
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Government grant/subsidy

During the year under review, the company allocated  a government subsidy amounting to N$240,528,000 as per 2015/2016
to 2017/2018 Medium Term Expenditure Framework Period. However the company received only N$143,417,084, hence
N$97,111,268 was never received from the government due to the fact that it was taken during the mid-year budget review.

27

Going concern

The company reported a profit/(loss) for the year ended 31 March 2016 of N$13 million (2015: N$17 million) and a surplus of
N$1 million is forecasted for the 2016/2017 financial year. The profit is attributable to a deferred tax credit of N$80 million during
the year and a reduction by N$11 million of a reported loss in the prior year. The company has also accumulated sufficient
surplus to absorb any future losses, and together with future revision to aeronautical and non-aeronautical revenue, controlling
operational expenditure and a procurement practices plan to manage the planned capital expenditure over the next five year
period.

27

New standards and interpretations

28.1

Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the company has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard / Interpretation

Effective
date:
Years Expected impact:
beginning on or after

Amendment to IAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 01 July 2014
Contributions

The impact of the amendment
is not material

Amendment to IFRS 2: Share-based Payment: Annual 01 July 2014
improvements project

The impact of the amendment
is not material

Amendment to IFRS 3: Business Combinations: Annual 01 July 2014
improvements project

The impact of the amendment
is not material

Amendment to IFRS 8: Operating Segments: Annual 01 July 2014
improvements project

The impact of the amendment
is not material

Amendment to IAS 16: Operating Segments: Annual 01 July 2014
improvements project

The impact of the amendment
is not material

Amendment to IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures: Annual 01 July 2014
improvements project

The impact of the amendment
is not material

Amendment to IAS
improvements project

Annual 01 July 2014

The impact of the amendment
is not material

Amendment to IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement: Annual 01 July 2014
improvements project

The impact of the amendment
is not material

Amendment to IFRS 40: Investment Property: Annual 01 July 2014
improvements project

The impact of the amendment
is not material

38:

Intangible
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28.2

Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for the company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2016 or later periods:
Standard / Interpretation

Effective date: Years
beginning on or after

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

01 January 2018

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

01 January 2016

Amendment to IFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

01 January 2016

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation 01 January 2016
and Amortisation
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with customers

01 January 2017

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants

01 January 2016

Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

01 January 2016

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor 01 January 2016
and its Associate or Joint Venture
Amendment to IFRS 5: Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: 01 January 2016
Annual Improvements project
Amendment to IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Annual Improvements project

01 January 2016

Amendment to IAS 19: Employee Benefits: Annual Improvements project

01 January 2016

Amendment to IAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting: Annual Improvements project

01 January 2016

Disclosure Initiative: Amendment to IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements

01 January 2016

Amendment to IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 28: Investment Entities. Applying the consolidation 01 January 2016
exemption
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Notes

31 March 2016
N$

31 March 2015
N$

Revenue

4

222,974,319

209,141,311

Other operating income

5

19,496,711

12,287,584

Interest received

7

Operating expenses
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

6

5,354,520

11,738,921

247,825,550

233,167,816

247,773,543

195,205,246

63,586,731

52,849,550

Motor vehicle expense

4,594,004

4,271,722

Municipality fees

3,466,169

2,048,182

Insurance

3,074,670

3,788,776

Licenses

1,582,615

778,187

6

3,612,343

3,121,725

863,410

457,407

6

20,303,019

15,834,189

4,923,377

4,213,687

118,095,379

91,674,066

Operating lease rentals
Protective clothing
Repairs and maintenance
Security costs
Staff costs

6

Telephone and fax
Water and electricity
Administrative expenses
Auditors’ remuneration

65,706,413

275,517

250,470

2,731,403

3,515,777

6

10,312,929

7,860,162

Bank charges
Cleaning
6

Computer expenses
Directors’ emoluments

9

Directors’ travelling and accommodation
Donations
Emergency exercises

265,184

-

215,872

4,257,487

1,654,844

10,153,625

14,283,631

43,151

80,864

947,495

872,659

2,467,058

3,031,111

727,289

1,092,951

24,660

6,000
1,369,420

7

177,956

131,526

1,719,335

1,169,987

6

6,501,985

11,499,071

16,591

232,981

Legal fees
Loss on scrapping of property and equipment

327,869

3,596,586

Entertainment
Interest paid

13,241,916

67,197,845

Bursary
Consulting fees

2,925,839

19,805,555

6

Advertising
Bad debts

3,866,271

Medical supplies
Other administrative expenses
Penalties, fines and interest
Postage

291,078

539,435

188

554,409

554,911

166,365

Stationery and printing

715,011

716,173

Subscriptions

579,168

518,125

Training - staff

9,820,256

7,824,882

Transportation - equipment

74,870

15,525

Travel and accommodation

10,881,428

7,838,990

(67,145,837)

(27,743,844)

Loss before tax
(This statement is unaudited and does not form part of the annual financial statements)
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NOTES
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Namibia Airports Company

5th Floor, Sanlam Centre, 154 Independence Avenue,
Windhoek, Namibia
P: +264 (0) 61 295 5015
F: +264 (0) 61 295 5022
E: pr@airports.com.na
W: www.airports.com.na
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